
  
  

  
  

        TOWN MEETING AGENDA   

    MAY 19, 2022 

 

This meeting will be held in person at the Chesapeake Beach Town Hall starting at 7:00 PM. 

This meeting will also be live streamed on the Town’s channel linked here.   

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 6:45 PM 

 

Ordinance O-22-5, an ordinance of the Town Council of Chesapeake Beach, Maryland adopting the annual 

budget for the Water Park Fund of the Town of Chesapeake Beach for the fiscal year July 1, 2022 to June 

30, 2023.  

 

Ordinance O-22-6, an ordinance of the Town Council of Chesapeake Beach, Maryland, adopting the annual 

budget for the Utility Fund of the Town of Chesapeake Beach for the fiscal year July 1, 2022 to June 30, 

2023 and setting rates, charges, and fees related to water and sewer service by the Town.  

 

Ordinance O-22-7, an ordinance of the  Town Council of Chesapeake Beach, Maryland, amending the 

annual budget for the General Fund of the Town of Chesapeake Beach for the fiscal year July 1, 2020 

to June 30, 2021 to reconcile expenses and income and ratify overexpenditures.   

 

Ordinance O-22-8, an ordinance of the  Town Council of Chesapeake Beach, Maryland, amending the 

annual budget for the Water Reclamation Treatment Plant Fund of the Town of Chesapeake Beach for 

the fiscal year July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021 to reconcile expenses and income and ratify 

overexpenditures.   

 
Ordinance O-22-9, an ordinance of the  Town Council of Chesapeake Beach, Maryland, amending the 

annual budget for the Utility Fund of the Town of Chesapeake Beach for the fiscal year July 1, 2020 

to June 30, 2021 to reconcile expenses and income and ratify overexpenditures.   

 

Ordinance O-22-10, an ordinance of the  Town Council of Chesapeake Beach, Maryland, amending 

the annual budget for the Water Park Fund of the Town of Chesapeake Beach for the fiscal year July 

1, 2020 to June 30, 2021 to reconcile expenses and income and ratify overexpenditures.   

 

Ordinance O-22-11, an ordinance of the Town Council of Chesapeake Beach, Maryland, amending 

the adopted General Fund budget of the Town of Chesapeake Beach for the fiscal year July 1, 2021 to 

June 30, 2022 to add funds in the amount of Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars ($25,000.00) in General 

Fund Hotel Tax and General Government Salaries and Wages. 

 

 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCQYw2ERvTo8fXnmvlMTgnhg


  
  

  
  

    TOWN MEETING AGENDA   

    MAY 19, 2022 

 

 

I. Call to order and roll call.  

             

II. Pledge of Allegiance.   

                   

III. Approval of the agenda.          

  

IV. Public Comment on any item on the agenda. 

 

V. Approval of the minutes of the April 21, 2022, Town Council Meeting. 

 

Approval of the  minutes of the May 10, 2022 Special Meeting. 

 

Approval of the minutes of the May 10, 2022, Informational Work Session. 

 

VI. Special Presentation – Proclamation from the Governor of the State of Maryland 

National Water Safety Month 

 

VII. Petitions and Communications   

 

A. Stephen Sharp – Candidate for the Board of Appeals 

 

B. Town Administrator’s Report  

 

C. Operations Manager Report 

 

D. Public Works Administrators Report  

 

E. Water Reclamation Treatment Plant Report  

  

F. Code Enforcement Report  

 



  
  

  
  

G. Town Treasurer’s Report  

 

H. Town Engineer’s Report  

 

I. Deputy’s Report 

  

J. North Beach Volunteer Fire Department 

K.   Mayor’s Report  

 VIII.  Resolutions & Ordinances    

 

A. Vote on Ordinance O-22-5, an ordinance of the Town Council of Chesapeake 

Beach, Maryland adopting the annual budget for the Water Park Fund of the 

Town of Chesapeake Beach for the fiscal year July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023.  

 

B. Vote on Ordinance O-22-6, an ordinance of the Town Council of 

Chesapeake Beach, Maryland, adopting the annual budget for the Utility 

Fund of the Town of Chesapeake Beach for the fiscal year July 1, 2022 to 

June 30, 2023 and setting rates, charges, and fees related to water and sewer 

service by the Town.  

 

C. Vote on Ordinance O-22-7, an ordinance of the  Town Council of 

Chesapeake Beach, Maryland, amending the annual budget for the General 

Fund of the Town of Chesapeake Beach for the fiscal year July 1, 2020 to 

June 30, 2021 to reconcile expenses and income and ratify 

overexpenditures.   

 

D. Vote on Ordinance O-22-8, an ordinance of the  Town Council of 

Chesapeake Beach, Maryland, amending the annual budget for the Water 

Reclamation Treatment Plant Fund of the Town of Chesapeake Beach for 

the fiscal year July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021 to reconcile expenses and 

income and ratify overexpenditures.   

 

E. Vote on Ordinance O-22-9, an ordinance of the  Town Council of 

Chesapeake Beach, Maryland, amending the annual budget for the Utility 

Fund of the Town of Chesapeake Beach for the fiscal year July 1, 2020 to 



  
  

  
  

June 30, 2021 to reconcile expenses and income and ratify 

overexpenditures.   

F. Vote on Ordinance O-22-10, an ordinance of the  Town Council of 

Chesapeake Beach, Maryland, amending the annual budget for the Water 

Park Fund of the Town of Chesapeake Beach for the fiscal year July 1, 2020 

to June 30, 2021 to reconcile expenses and income and ratify 

overexpenditures.   

 

G. Vote on Ordinance O-22-11, an ordinance of the Town Council of 

Chesapeake Beach, Maryland, amending the adopted General Fund budget 

of the Town of Chesapeake Beach for the fiscal year July 1, 2021 to June 

30, 2022 to add funds in the amount of Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars 

($25,000.00) in General Fund Hotel Tax and General Government Salaries 

and Wages.  

 

IX. Report of Officers, Boards and Committees  

 

A. Planning & Zoning Commission – No meeting held in April. 

  

B. Board of Appeals – No hearing held.  

  

C. Chesapeake Beach Oyster Cultivation Society – John Bacon 

 

D. Climate Change Advisory Group – Larry Jaworski 

 

E. Economic Development Committee – Larry Jaworski  

  

F. Green Team – Valerie Beaudin 

 

G. Kellam’s Revitalization Committee – Greg Morris 

 

H. Twin Beaches Opioid Abuse Awareness Coalition – Keith Pardieck  

  

I. Walkable Community Advisory Group – Charles Fink 

  

           X.  Unfinished Business   



  
  

  
  

  

 XI.  New Business  

 

1. Town Council to consider the appointment of Stephen Sharp to the Board of 

Appeals. 

 

2. Town Council to consider awarding a contract to Old Line Environmental 

Synagro for one year term with the option to renew for two additional one-year 

terms for biosolid removal at the Chesapeake Beach Water Reclamation 

Treatment plant per the pricing provided to the Town by RFP on May 4th, 2022.  

 

 

 XII.  Public Comment    

  

XIII.    Council Lightning Round   

 

         XIV. Adjournment  

 

















 
 

8200 BAYSIDE ROAD, P.O. BOX 400 CHESAPEAKE BEACH, MARYLAND 20732 

(410) 257-2230 (301) 855-8398 

-    

      TOWN COUNCIL             

     SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES  

                     May 10, 2022 

 
I. Patrick J. Mahoney, Mayor, called the meeting to order at 5:40 p.m. In attendance were Dr. 

Valerie Beaudin, L. Charles Fink, Margaret P. Hartman, Lawrence P. Jaworski, and Gregory J. 

Morris, Council Members, Holly K. Wahl, Town Administrator, Sharon L. Humm, Town Clerk, 

Todd Pounds, Town Attorney, Brittany Moran, Town Treasurer, James Berry, Public Works 

Manager, and Jon Castro, WRTP Manger. Absent was Keith Pardieck, Council Member. 

 

II. Pledge of Allegiance – The Mayor led the Pledge of Allegiance.  

 

III. Fishing Creek Dredge Maintenance Easement and Authorization to the   

Army Corps of Engineers. Ms. Wahl stated the Army Corps of Engineers utilizes the Town’s 

Dredge Material Placement (DMP) site to place dredge yield. With the dredging of the Fishing 

Creek channel and the dredging required to make the necessary repairs to the jetty wall, the Corps 

of Engineers will need authorization from the Town to access the DMP site.  It is being 

recommended that the Town Council authorize the Mayor to execute  a Dredged Material Easement 

Deed and a Dredged Disposal Pipeline Easement Deed allowing the Army Corps of Engineers that 

access. NOTE: All costs associated with the dredging and activities related to placement in the DMP 

site will be paid by the Army Corps of Engineers. Mr. Berry was available to address questions 

from the Council. 

 

MOTION:  Councilman Jaworski moved to authorize the Mayor to execute a Dredged 

Material Easement Deed.  Seconded by Councilwoman Hartman, all in favor. 

 

MOTION:  Councilwoman Beaudin moved to authorize the Mayor to execute a 

Dredged Disposal Pipeline Easement Deed.  Seconded by Councilwoman Hartman, all 

in favor. 

 

Councilman Morris requested the Council be provided a copy of deeds once executed. 

 

IV. Adjournment 

 

There being no further comments the Special meeting adjourned at 5:55 pm on a motion by 

Councilman Fink. Seconded by Councilwoman Hartman, all in favor. 

  Submitted by, 

 

   Sharon L. Humm 

Town Clerk 



 
 

8200 BAYSIDE ROAD, P.O. BOX 400 CHESAPEAKE BEACH, MARYLAND 20732 

(410) 257-2230 (301) 855-8398 

-    

                  MINUTES OF THE 

                                     TOWN COUNCIL INFORMATIONAL 

            WORK SESSION  

                     MAY 10, 2022 

 

I. Patrick J. Mahoney, Mayor, called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. In attendance were       

Dr. Valerie Beaudin, L. Charles Fink, Margaret P. Hartman, Lawrence P. Jaworski, and 

Gregory J. Morris, Council Members, Holly K. Wahl, Town Administrator, Sharon L. 

Humm, Town Clerk, Todd Pounds, Town Attorney, Brittany Moran, Town Treasurer,  

James Berry, Public Works Manager, and Jon Castro, WRTP Manager.  Absent was Keith 

Pardieck, Council Member. 

 

II. Pledge of Allegiance – The Mayor led the Pledge of Allegiance.  

 

III. Informational discussion on the following items: 

 

1. Water Reclamation Treatment Plant Biosolids Sludge Removal – Ms. Wahl stated a 

formal RFP was released for sludge removal on April 12, 2022.  The RFP was posted 

on eMaryland Marketplace Advantage and sent directly to thirty (30) vendors through 

the EMMA procurement portal. A mandatory pre-bid meeting was held with only one 

bidder attending, Old Line Environmental – Synagro Inc.  Old Line Environmental is 

the Town’s current provider for sludge removal and the contract will expire in August 

of 2022.  Mr. Castro was available to address concerns from the Council.  

Town staff noted the cost per wet ton is higher than the budgeted number. Staff will 

review the submitted price against the budgeted amount for FY23 and make a 

recommendation to the Town Council at the May Town meeting. This is a shared 

expense with the Partners.  

 

 

2. HVAC Improvements Public Works Facility -  Ms. Wahl stated, included in the FY22 

budget, were costs related to HVAC upgrades at the Chesapeake Beach Public Works 

facility. She presented the scope of work to the Council and commented the Town has 

received one (1) proposal and expects two more proposals this week.  Mr. Berry was 

available to address questions from the Council.  Town staff is expected to submit a 

recommendation to Town Council at the May Town meeting. 

      
IV. Council Lightning Round – 

 

1. Ms. Hartman commented she is glad to be back at the dais and looks forward to the 

Health & Wellness Fair on Saturday. 

 

2. The Mayor relayed a message for Mr. Pardieck reminding everyone about the upcoming 

Health & Wellness Fair on Saturday from 10 am to 2 pm and hopes to see everyone 

there. 



 
 

8200 BAYSIDE ROAD, P.O. BOX 400 CHESAPEAKE BEACH, MARYLAND 20732 

(410) 257-2230 (301) 855-8398 

-    

 

3. Mr. Morris is looking forward to the Stars and Stripes event coming up and “fingers 

crossed” for good weather for the Health & Wellness Fair on Saturday.             

 

4. Mr. Jaworski is hoping the weather holds out for a great day for the Health & Wellness 

Fair on Saturday and sent congratulations to Randy Wilkerson, operator trainee at the 

Water Reclamation Treatment Plant, for being awarded a scholarship for further 

training in the field. 

 

5. Mr. Fink commented the Town is very fortunate in having the great folks we do working 

for the Town, both the elected officials and the staff, and commented that civility is a 

great attribute to have, so to be mindful of that in our everyday life. Looking forward 

to the Health Fair! 

 

6. Dr. Beaudin reported the Green Team had a successful Spring Cleanup day and looking 

forward also to the Health & Wellness Fair. 

           V.    Adjournment: 

 There being no further comments the meeting adjourned at 6:45 p.m. on a motion by   

Councilwoman Beaudin. Seconded by Councilman Jaworski, all in favor.  

              Submitted by, 

 

 

 

                     Sharon L. Humm   

                     Town Clerk 

 

 

 



 
 
 
Stephen J. Sharp 
Lieutenant, Fifth District  
Patrol Services North 
Metropolitan Police Department 
1805 Bladensburg Road, NE 
Washington, DC 20002 
 
 
 
 
Last year my wife Robin and I were looking at areas to relocate and we just ABSOLUTELY fell in  love with 
Chesapeake Beach.  We love the community and small-town living. We lived in DC and did not want to 
raise our son Cullen in that type of city environment anymore. We found a house on 14th street and 
moved in last summer. It has been the best decision we ever made.  
 
I have been employed with Metropolitan Police Department for the past 15 years and have served as an 
Officer, Sergeant, and now currently as Lieutenant. As Lieutenant I’m considered a manager and have a 
great amount of responsibility. On any given day I’m in charge of 40-60 police officers and serve as the 
Watch Commander for my assigned shift. When not running the shift, I perform internal investigations 
on subordinates ranging from misconduct to officer involved use of force. I also attend community 
meetings and create crime plans for my district.  
 
While my job as a police lieutenant involves a lot sometimes, I really want to volunteer and become 
vested in my town  government. I have a wealth of knowledge and would be a great asset to have on the 
board.  I look forward to meeting the council and if you have any other questions, please let me know.  
 



               Town Administrators Report – May 2022 
 

 

I. CONGRATULATIONS TO THE “IF I WERE MAYOR, I WOULD….” Essay semifinalists 

 

Remy Nolan and Lauren Kingsbury of Beach Elementary school. The essay contest challenges students 

to learn about municipal government by creatively sharing their thoughts on being a mayor. District 4- 

includes Anne Arundel, Calvert, Charles & St. Mary’s Counties, with over 2,200 essays submitted. 

Read more here.  

 

II. CONGRATULATIONS TO RANDY WILKERSON OF THE CBWRTP:  

 

The Town of Chesapeake Beach congratulates Chesapeake Beach Water Reclamation Treatment Plant 

(WRTP) Operator Trainee Randy Wilkerson on being awarded a scholarship from the Chesapeake AWWA 

(American Water Works Association), WWOA (Water Wastewater Operators Association), and CWEA 

(Chesapeake Water Environment Association). Randy will participate in training to gain the insights and 

knowledge that enable water and wastewater systems personnel to operate their facilities more effectively, 

safely, and economically. In June, as part of the scholarship, Randy will attend a one-week training course at 

the Washington College in Chestertown, MD. At the course's closing, Randy will be prepared to take the 

Maryland Department of Environment (MDE) Wastewater 5 A Exam to obtain his MDE Operator Class 5 A 

Certification. Read more here.  

 

III. EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITIES WITH THE TOWN OF CHESAPEAKE BEACH:  

 

The Town of Chesapeake Beach is seeking a Water Reclamation Treatment (wastewater) plant operator 

trainee. If you are interested in applying to work for the Town in this capacity, please click here to learn more.  

 

IV. UPCOMING REQUESTS FOR PROPOSALS:  

 

Water Reclamation Treatment Plant Launder Cover RFP: This RFP will be posted on eMaryland 

Marketplace Advantage eMMa.  

 

Roof Replacement Town Hall and Public Works Facility: This RFP will be posted on eMaryland 

Marketplace Advantage eMMa.  

 

V. FEDERAL DREDGE PREPARATION:  

 

Army Corps of Engineers Update May 11, 2022: During a May 10th Special Meeting the Town Council 

authorized the Mayor to execute an agreement providing access to the Town Dredge Material Placement 

(DMP) site for the placement of dredge yield. The Army Corps of Engineers reports that the bid for the 

dredging and jetty wall improvements is expected to be released by May 13. The project is still on track to 

award around the end of June/early July. Information will be posted on the Town website when it becomes 

available to include material testing.  

https://www.chesapeakebeachmd.gov/home/news/if-i-were-mayor-i-would
https://www.washcoll.edu/
https://www.chesapeakebeachmd.gov/home/news/water-reclamation-treatment-plant-employee-receives-scholarship-further-training
https://www.indeed.com/job/water-reclamation-treatment-wastewater-plant-operator-trainee-edeaf1991404933e


               Town Administrators Report – May 2022 
 

 

 

VI. HIGHLANDS SPECIAL TAX DISTRICT:  

 

Highlands Public Sewer Connectivity Hearing: The Board of County Commissioners of Calvert County 

held a public hearing on Tuesday, December 14, 2021, at 7:00 p.m. at the Northeast Community Center, 4075 

Gordon Stinnett Avenue, Chesapeake Beach, Maryland 20732, to receive testimony from the public on the 

Petition of Highlands Homeowners Association, Inc. (HHOA) to establish a new Special Taxing District 

beginning Fiscal Year 2023. The County Department of Public Works has confirmed that the HOA has initiated 

the process for an additional hearing with the County Attorney’s office and the Clerk to the Board. The County 

is in the early stages of verifying the correct exchange of information. The Clerk to the Board of County 

Commissioners expects to put together a timeline for the next steps. The project is expected to be underway in 

2025, per Calvert County Public Works.  

 

 

VII. TOWN ASSETS:  

 

• Kellam’s Field: The Town is working through the permitting process with the Maryland Department of 

Environment (MDE) to install approximately 430’ of 18” HDPE storm drain across the ball field. This 

will include the installation of a concrete precast storm drain inlet on the receiving south end. A rip rap 

channel will be discharging into a small sediment pond on the North end.  

  

• Bayfront Park: Bayfront Park remains closed to the general public. The Park is open to Town guests, 

NBVFD, Twin Beach Deputies, and guests accompanying them. Park signage has been refreshed to 

clean up the appearance and communicate the current rules and restrictions. The Town reminds citizens 

to adhere to the signage restricting access to the cliff areas. To view the entire public safety 

announcement, click here. 

 

• Chesapeake Beach Water Park: Thank you to the Public Works and Water Park staff who have 

worked tirelessly in preparation for the 2022 season. During repairs for the 2022 season, and as an 

added precaution, our Town Engineer reviewed the structures and made recommendations to address 

two issues related to the nonstructural features. These areas will be handled by Town staff before 

opening the park. The town staff is preparing to work with our Town Engineer to understand further a 

replacement timeline for the above pool nonstructural structures through 3D modeling.    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

https://www.calvertcountymd.gov/DocumentCenter/View/36876/HHOA-Public-Hearing-Notice?bidId=
https://www.chesapeakebeachmd.gov/home/news/%E2%80%9Cbayfront-park-remains-closed-general-public-no-access-cliff-areas-remains-place-all%E2%80%9D


               Town Administrators Report – May 2022 
 

 

VIII. GRANTS:   

 

 
1. The preceding (3) three projects have been awarded grant funding totaling $150,000 through 

the State of Maryland. In May, town staff will schedule public outreach on these projects 

through the Towns Walkable Community Advisory Group. This input will guide the scope of 

work created to start the bidding process.  



               Town Administrators Report – May 2022 
 

 

2. Safe Routes to School SRTS 100% construction design: Town staff continues to work 

through the 100% design safe routes to school project and expects to have an MOU with the 

State before Town Council soon.  

3. Coastal Resiliency Grant: The Town continues to work through planning for coastal 

resiliency through the grant funding provided by the Maryland Department of Natural 

Resources. The Eastern Shore GIS is finalizing the mapping as contracted by the Town of 

Chesapeake Beach. Coastal resiliency committee meetings and steering committee meetings 

continue through planning processes. The Steering committee will meet on June 8th at 7:00 PM 

and July 13th at 7:00 PM. The meeting will be held at Town Hall and live-streamed on the 

Towns channel.  

 
Map drafting (this map is incomplete as is just for illustrative purposes) source Eastern Shore GIS 

 

 

V. ADMINISTRATIVE UPDATES:  

 

The Town received complaints related to debris from improvements at 8501 Bayside Rd. Chesapeake 

Beach, MD. The contractor was cited and fined for not containing debris from exterior work and littering 

in the Bay and neighboring properties. The contractor is also required to clean up all trash properly.  

 

VI.  TOWN PERMIT ACTIVITY:  

 

Permit #              Address:                                   Improvement: 

pending 4026 11th St 24x36 Gravel parking area 

pending 3748 Harbor Rd. Complete 2nd floor of Crab house 

pending 7515 B St SFD 

pending 2536 Crest View Lane Deck 10x12 

2022-42 2295 Sansbury Dr Fence 

2022-39 7408 F St accessory dwelling 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCQYw2ERvTo8fXnmvlMTgnhg


               Town Administrators Report – May 2022 
 

 

2022-43 8736 Bayside Rd. Fence 

2022-38 8323 Bayside Rd. add exterior door, deck & steps 

pending 8323 Bayside Rd. Relocation of the dumpster area 

2022-44 2992 Heritage Dr. Deck 12x22 

pending 7804 Old Bayside Rd Remove and install antennas 

2022-41 7607 B St. Pier  

pending 3736 Dark Star Install one antenna  

2022-45 8370 Legacy Cir Fence & Deck 

pending 8207 Elm Ln Revision to approved house plans 

2022-46 3819 Harbor Rd Replace fence 

2022-48 4160 Mears Ave 

Repair & replace timber piles, with conditions per 

MDE review  

 

 



Operations Manager Report – May 2022 

 
 

Page 1 of 11 
 

TOWN EVENTS: 

Twin Beaches Health Fair was a success! – Saturday, May 14, 2022 at Kellam’s Field (10am-2pm)  

This event was a partnership with the Town of Chesapeake Beach, the Twin Beach Opiod Abuse Awareness 
Team, the Town of North Beach, Calvert Health, and Calvert County Health Department.  

 



Operations Manager Report – May 2022 

 
 

Page 2 of 11 
 
 



Operations Manager Report – May 2022 

 
 

Page 3 of 11 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



Operations Manager Report – May 2022 

 
 

Page 4 of 11 
 

 

 

  



Operations Manager Report – May 2022 

 
 

Page 5 of 11 
 

Stars & Stripes Ceremony / Family Fun Day “The Great American Picnic” – Saturday, May 28, 2022 

More information and updates here: https://www.chesapeakebeachmd.gov/town-
events/pages/stars-and-stripes-festival 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

https://www.chesapeakebeachmd.gov/town-events/pages/stars-and-stripes-festival
https://www.chesapeakebeachmd.gov/town-events/pages/stars-and-stripes-festival


Operations Manager Report – May 2022 

 
 

Page 6 of 11 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Operations Manager Report – May 2022 

 
 

Page 7 of 11 
 

 

Independence Day Celebration – Sunday, July 3, 2022 

More information and updates here: https://www.chesapeakebeachmd.gov/town-
events/pages/independence-day-celebration 

 

  

https://www.chesapeakebeachmd.gov/town-events/pages/independence-day-celebration
https://www.chesapeakebeachmd.gov/town-events/pages/independence-day-celebration


Operations Manager Report – May 2022 

 
 

Page 8 of 11 
 

PARKS & RECREATION: 

 

Water Park Daily Admissions Tickets are now on sale! 

Daily admission, season passes, birthday parties, and swim lessons are on sale at the Water Park 
website: https://chesapeakebeachwaterpark.com/ 

 

The Water Park OPENS on Saturday, May 28, 2022! 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

https://chesapeakebeachwaterpark.com/


Operations Manager Report – May 2022 

 
 

Page 9 of 11 
 

 

May is National Water Safety Month! 

Learning to swim and the exposure to the water safety skills and messages provide a lifelong foundation for 
drowning prevention. That’s why Governor Hogan has proclaimed May as National Water Safety Month. 
Let’s all “be water aware” this May! @MayIsNWSM @larryhogan 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Operations Manager Report – May 2022 

 
 

Page 10 of 11 
 

 

National Travel and Tourism Week in Calvert County 

On Tuesday, May 3rd, 2022 the Calvert County Board of Commissioners proclaimed the week of May 1-7, 2022 
as National Travel & Tourism Week in Calvert County. 

Travel has a positive effect on Calvert County’s economic prosperity and image abroad. For 2020, tourism 
improved the local economy by providing labor income of $74.9 million, 1,607 jobs and $16.3 million in 
adjusted sales and use taxes. 

The tourism industry suffered significant setbacks in 2020 and 2021 due to the effects of the COVID-19 
pandemic, but local sites, attractions, hotels, restaurants and the workforce that supports them remain 
committed to a strong and enthusiastic comeback in 2022. Welcoming visitors from near and far has always 
been, and always will be, the enduring character of the travel industry in Calvert County. 

The BOCC invites citizens to recognize the critical role this industry plays in Calvert County. 

Source: Calvert Beacon - https://www.calvertbeacon.com/may-1-7-2022-as-national-travel-tourism-week-in-calvert-county/ 

 

  



Operations Manager Report – May 2022 

 
 

Page 11 of 11 
 

THANK YOU TO OUR DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS! 

Filo Blake, the Water Park Maintenance Technician, as well as our Department of Public Works under Jay 
Berry, have been working tirelessly preparing the pool and its surrounding structures for a successful 2022 
season. We could not do this without you! 

 

Ice Breaker Training / Soft Launch 

On Saturday, May 21, 2022, the Water Park staff will take part in a mandatory hands-on training that is 
supplemental to their individual departmental training sessions. Calvert County Sheriff’s Office will hold 
specific emergency situational training to better prepare our staff for emergency situations. Following our 
training, we will hold an invitation only soft launch of the Water Park to allow staff to practice their training in 
a real operational situation. This will also allow the Water Park Management and Staff to see if there are any 
details that need to be resolved prior to our official opening day. 

 



         
 

8200 BAYSIDE ROAD, P.O. BOX 400, CHESAPEAKE BEACH, MARYLAND 20732 

(410) 257-2230  

    Public Works Administrator’s Report 

 

To:    Mayor & Town Council                From:  James Berry 

 

Subject:   Public Works Report                          Date:    May 19, 2022 

 

 

                      

Water leak- we replaced a 4” water valve at F and 28th street. There was a water main in Richfield 

Station on Harrison Blvd. that is now repaired.  

 Wet wells- Pump 2 at B street pump station is offline. I am looking into replacing the check 

valves for both pump 1 and 2 

Water meter/MXU- We are still changing out MXU’s as needed. Meters are still on back order. 

Nothing new to report. 

Flushing- first of three flushing’s for the year is now complete, next time we flush will be just 

after July 4th Holiday. 

Ball fields – We have replaced sinking and broken sidewalks at the entrance to the complex. 

Several outdated signs have been removed or replaced. We are currently working on bringing 

permanent electric to the pavilion for events.  

Railway Trail – the blue bird box is now installed, we are back to cutting grass and weeding, 

please as always pick up after your pets. 

Water Park – PW has worked with the water park maintenance tec to locate and repair several 

leaks. We have also replaced rusted and failing pipe hangers in the cave.  

Surveys/storm drains – as discussed in our work session, we are moving forward with the install 

of new storm drain facilities at the Tot Lot and ball field. Nothing new to report. 

The Heritage – We are still conducting walk throughs. 

Emergency calls – We responded to 4 calls out of 9 calls. 2 were for the water main breaks, 1 

for a water lateral break on the homeowner’s side and one for a house fire in RS. 

  

 



         
 

8200 BAYSIDE ROAD, P.O. BOX 400, CHESAPEAKE BEACH, MARYLAND 20732 

(410) 257-2230  

 

To:    Mayor & Town Council             From:  Jon Castro 

 

Subject:   Water Reclamation Plant Report                            Date: May 19, 2022 

  

 
The Water Reclamation Treatment Plant had implemented new COVID-19 operations and continues 

following all updated Federal, State, County, and Town’s Mayor and Council Guidelines to control the 

spread of the virus. Update: On January 10, 2022, the WRTP staff went back to two employee crews 

alternating each week for the work schedule. This was due to the COVID-19 mutation Omicron outbreak. 

The WRTP returned to a full work schedule on February 28, 2022.   

WRTP maintenance projects for this month’s report consisted of preventive maintenance for the UV 

banks, bar screens, combination valves, RAS pumps, methanol pumps, PACL pumps, and aeration 

blowers. 

WRTP staff performed the scheduled service for the blower and motor bearings for VFD Blower #1, 

quarterly lubrication of all davit cranes, and seasonal preventative maintenance for all grounds 

maintenance equipment. 

WRTP staff performed corrective work to replace the lab fume hood exhaust fan motor for the Lab and 

replaced inline strainers for the denitrification filter sample pumps. 

IMACS replaced a valve actuator for the air scour lines for the denitrification filters. With the replacement 

of this actuator and confirmation of operation, WRTP staff were able to adjust the backwash timers for 

the denitrification filters to backwash during off-peak hours for electrical consumption.  

Water Reclamation Plant Trainee II, Randy Wilkerson, received a full scholarship from the AWWA 

Chesapeake section for this summer’s 73rd Annual Short Course. 

The WRTP had two staff members test positive for COVID-19. Both isolated per CDC guidelines and 

returned to work wearing well-fitting masks up to day 10 from their initial diagnosis. Both staff members 

have recovered fully. One staff member experienced an injury to their hand from a broken material jar 

while removing items from a recently received delivery. The staff member received 5 stitches to their 

hand and returned to work. The staff member has since had the stitches removed. 

The Shellfish Protection Tank was utilized one time during this period for a total of 397 thousand 

gallons of flow due to 2.05 inches of rain.  

The WRTP had one alarm call for this month’s report. Staff was called in for a filter high-level alarm 

believed to be due to a false level reading from intense heavy rainfall. Operator back into plant on 5-7-

2022 to check operation during rain and costal flooding. Plant operation all ok. 



         
 

8200 BAYSIDE ROAD, P.O. BOX 400, CHESAPEAKE BEACH, MARYLAND 20732 

(410) 257-2230  

There were no incidents to report in the plant’s Solids and Handling Operation. The present Solids Hauling 

Contract will expire on August 1, 2022, and extension or bids will begin next year. A pre-bid meeting 

occurred at the CBWRTP on April 29th, with only one outside contractor attending. Bid opening was on 

May 6th. 

 

The WRTP had no SSO spills or Filter Diversions to report for this month’s meeting.  

 

Future Projects: 

 

To complete working setting up an inventory of priority spare parts and increase training on maintenance 

of plant equipment. All plant SOPs are to be upgraded on plant equipment with pictures included in the 

maintenance and lab procedures. Training on all plant maintenance, lab, and daily operations will be 

videotaped to store for future references. The projects noted in the Capital Projects requests are on track 

for the RFP to be completed in the 2022 budget.  

 

        

                                    

 

























Rental Registration Case by Status Report
Report Criteria:
Case Open From To Case Close From To

 

Report Details:

Status # of cases with this status

Application received 1

Application reviewed - need more info 1

Inspections in progress 7

Waiting on License Fee 44

License Current 227

License Expired 0

Declaration of Ineligibility 0

Closed: Expired - Will not renew 0

Notification Process 32

Closed 39

Re-Inspection 13

Total Cases 364



 
Town of Chesapeake Beach 

 
Engineer’s Report 5-10-22 

 
 

From:  Messick Group, Inc (MGI) 
Wayne A. Newton, P.E 

 
 
Below is the monthly update of projects and upcoming action items to be completed by our office: 
 
Fishing Creek Dredging:  
 
Action:  Dredge spoil excavation completed.  USACOE doing as-built survey to confirm volume created.   
 
Waiting for update from USACOE for bidding date and final required volume.  Jay & I attended a meeting today 
with the USACOE finance team.  The finance team (20+ people) visited the site to review the project.  We learned 
the project does not have their MDE Water Quality Certificate to date and has not been bid.  They are hoping to 
award the project in June or July of 2022. 
 
Richfield Station: 
 
Action:  M&A signed the final forms of PWA’s and forwarded to Town for completion of the Plats on 7/27/21.  
Waiting for plat processing and start of construction – Minor email traffic about plat signing details in late 
December, but nothing further.  M&A is as-built surveying portions of the sewers to determine slopes and possible 
inverted sections in preparation for work to re-start to guide the repairs. 
 
261 Sidewalks: 
 
Action:  SHA final 30% design review is in progress by SHA.  M&A followed up with Office of Structures to gain 
status of the review.  Office of Structures should complete their review by End of April, then supply comments.  
The 100% CD kick off meeting was held on November 16, 2021.  SHA is finalizing the grant and scope documents 
for the Town’s review.  M&A is assisting the SHA to process the historic structures review while waiting for the 
SHA contracts.  M&A provided list of affected properties requiring easements or right of way to SHA and updated 
to include right of way areas needed for each property.  NEPA approval will be received once we can identify the 
exact impact areas in the final design phase. 
 
Heritage: 
 
Action:   Final walk through planned to develop punch list of remedial items once the project is finished. 
 
Kellams Field: 
 
Action:  Draft of phase 1 master plan for Kellam’s redevelopment including tot lot, senior exercise amenities, pickle 
ball, tennis court and walking trails completed for review with the committee.  Completed concept plan for rec 
equipment with the equipment manufacturers.  Draft design to be forwarded to the committee for review.  Starting 
design of replacement storm drain under field to create positive drainage off the site.  Tidal & non-tidal wetlands 
flagged and surveyed for MDE/USACOE review.   Preparing the Joint State & Federal Applications for review 
which will be submitted once the MDE confirms the delineation.  



 
 
 
WWTP UV Protection RFP 
 
Action:  M&A, Jon Castro & Josh Stinnett reviewed the draft plans and provided comments to McCrone who are 
now preparing the final bid documents.  M&A is preparing the RFP package and setting up the bidding forms.  
Project to be put out to bid upon completion near end of May. 
 
Flood Resiliency Plan 
 
Action:  M&A working with Chris Jakubiak and Committee to explore recommendations to address future sea level 
rise concerns. M&A documented flood levels from 10/29 storm.  Created map of areas impacted by 10/29 storm 
for the committees use.  Overall mapping of 4 subareas is complete.  They include Harbor Rd, Kellams Field, 
Seagate & 27th/ C Streets.  Working with the committee to determine other areas of concern within Town that may 
need detailed review to schedule those surveys. Working with the steering committee to assist their 
recommendations and progress. 
 
Water Park 
 
Action:  M&A working with Town staff to review the integrity of the Water park and creating a report of suggested 
upgrades.  Also setting up a scanning of the site to create a 3D model of the existing conditions. 
 

 



  1 

  

CCAALLVVEERRTT  CCOOUUNNTTYY  SSHHEERRIIFFFF’’SS  OOFFFFIICCEE  

TTWWIINN  BBEEAACCHHEESS  PPAATTRROOLL  

 
 

 

Date:     May 4, 2022 

To:         Sharon Humm 

From:     Sergeant Gary Shrawder  

Re:         Sheriff’s Office Report-Chesapeake Beach  

In April of 2022, the Sheriff’s Office handled 139 calls for service in Chesapeake Beach. This is down from 202 calls in March of 

2022. 

Twin Beach deputies had 754 self-initiated (patrol checks, follow-up investigations, traffic stops etc) 

Twin Beach deputies received 139 calls for service by other means (citizens, alarm companies, etc) 

Call Breakdown for the 139 calls, we handled: 

 

• Theft 

1) Chesapeake Beach Fastop- suspect stole gas treatment- business did not want to pursue charges- trespass warning issued 

2) Roland’s- suspect stole medication and cell phone from unlocked vehicle- under investigation 

• Fraud 

1) 29th St- (scam)unknown suspect used a Zelle account to withdraw monies from bank account- under investigation 

2) F st- (scam)unknown suspect/company convinced victim to deposit money in to bank accounts so they can withdraw-

under investigation 

• Sexual Assault 

1) Legacy Cir- husband assaulted wife- under investigation 

• Narcotics arrests 

1) NBVFD- traffic stop- civil marijuana located- 1 arrest 

2) Tyler’s tackle Shop- traffic stop- civil marijuana located- 1 arrest 

3) Bayside Rd 7 31st St- traffic stop- civil marijuana located- 2 arrested 

4) Rt.260 & Cox Rd- traffic stop- civil marijuana located- 2 arrested 

5) Rt.260 & St. Andrews Dr- traffic stop- Fentanyl/crack cocaine/heroin located- 1 arrest 

6) Rt.261 & Chesapeake Village- traffics top- civil marijuana located- 1 arrested 

• Miscellaneous Arrests  

1) Chesapeake Station Shopping Center- wanted subject lied about his name- subject charged with false statement to law 

enforcement officer- 1 arrested 



   

  2 

2) Abner’s- intoxicated suspect refusing to leave- 1 arrested 

3) Chesapeake Beach Fastop- traffic stop- suspect charged with possession of urine(used to circumvent a drug test)-               

1 arrested 

4) Rt.260 & G st- traffic stop- suspect/driver intoxicated- 1 arrested 

5) Rt.260 & St. Andrews Dr- traffic stop- suspect/driver intoxicated- 1 arrested 



April 2022 Calls for Service Chesapeake Beach

Call Type Month Year Call Type Month Year Call Type Month Year

911 Hang Up 17 110 Firearms Complaint 1 1 Relay 0 3

Abandoned Vehicle 5 7 Fireworks Complaint 0 0 Robbery 0 0

Accident 7 31 Found Property 1 5 Search Warrant 1 1

Alarm 2 17 Fraud 2 5 Sexual Assault 1 1

Alcohol Violation 0 0 Harassment 0 4 Sex Offender Registry 0 0

Animal Complaint 3 13 Illegal Dumping 0 0 Special Assignment 5 13

Assault 0 4 Industrial Accident 0 1 Stalking 0 0

Assist Motorist 3 20 Indecent Exposure 0 0 Stolen Vehicle 0 0

Assist Other Dept 2 14 Intoxicated Person 0 0 Summons Service 1 7

Assist Sick/Injured 5 13 Kidnapping/Abduction 0 0 Suspicious Person 9 25

Attempt to Locate 7 41 Loitering 0 1 Suspicious Vehicle 4 27

Burglary 0 1 Lost Property 0 0 Tampering with MV 1 1

CDS Violation 0 3 Loud Party/ Music 0 0 Telephone Misuse 0 0

Check Welfare 7 21 Mental Subject 0 3 Theft 2 6

Conservor of Peace 1 13 Missing Person 0 2 Traffic Complaint 5 19

Destruction of Property 0 2 Neighborhood Dispute 1 3 Traffice Control 0 4

Death Investigation 0 2 Notification 1 1 Traffic Enforcement 0 3

Disorderly 6 16 Parking Complaint 1 5 Trespassing 2 7

Domestic 9 21 Person with Weapon 1 1 Unauthorized Use MV 0 0

Escort 0 1 Police Information 19 64 Unknown Problem 1 3

Eviction 1 1 Protective/Peace Order 1 10 Violation Protective Order 0 3

Fight 0 2 Prowler 0 0 Warrant Service 5 7

Total Calls 139 588

Month Year Month Year Month Year

DUI Arrest 2 8 CDS Arrest 1 7 Other Arrest 3 16

Civil Marijuana Citations 7 14 Non Fatal Overdose 1 1 Fatal Overdose 0 0

Patrol Checks 496 1935 Traffic Stops 100 371 Follow Ups 3 19

Deputies assigned to the Twin Beach Patrol handled 183 calls outside of the Twin Beach Patrol Area in this month.                                                                                                                            

(These calls include off duty responses, calls handled to and from work, special events, overtime assignments, special unit assignments, calls while working a shift, etc. The Computer 

Data System has no way of classifying the on shift or off shift status of an officer when handling a call for service.)

 **** Notes ****



April 2022 Calls for Service North Beach

Call Type Month Year Call Type Month Year Call Type Month Year

911 Hang Up 13 38 Firearms Complaint 0 0 Relay 1 1

Abandoned Vehicle 0 0 Fireworks Complaint 0 0 Robbery 0 1

Accident 2 7 Found Property 1 5 Search Warrant 0 1

Alarm 5 12 Fraud 0 2 Sexual Assault 0 0

Alcohol Violation 0 0 Harassment 1 1 Sex Offender Registry 0 0

Animal Complaint 0 5 Illegal Dumping 0 2 Special Assignment 2 2

Assault 0 1 Industrial Accident 0 0 Stalking 0 0

Assist Motorist 4 9 Indecent Exposure 0 0 Stolen Vehicle 0 0

Assist Other Dept 1 2 Intoxicated Person 1 1 Summons Service 0 5

Assist Sick/Injured 1 9 Kidnapping/Abduction 0 0 Suspicious Person 2 7

Attempt to Locate 2 6 Loitering 0 0 Suspicious Vehicle 1 7

Burglary 1 1 Lost Property 0 0 Tampering with MV 0 0

CDS Violation 1 4 Loud Party/ Music 0 0 Telephone Misuse 0 0

Check Welfare 6 21 Mental Subject 1 1 Theft 0 6

Conservor of Peace 1 4 Missing Person 0 2 Traffic Complaint 0 2

Destruction of Property 3 5 Neighborhood Dispute 0 0 Traffice Control 0 0

Death Investigation 0 0 Notification 0 0 Traffic Enforcement 1 3

Disorderly 6 14 Parking Complaint 2 9 Trespassing 0 1

Domestic 3 14 Person with Weapon 0 1 Unauthorized Use MV 0 2

Escort 0 1 Police Information 5 21 Unknown Problem 0 1

Eviction 1 2 Protective/Peace Order 1 4 Violation Protective Order 0 0

Fight 0 0 Prowler 0 0 Warrant Service 1 2

Total Calls 70 245

Month Year Month Year Month Year

DUI Arrest 0 1 CDS Arrest 1 4 Other Arrest 6 15

Civil Marijuana Citations 4 7 Non Fatal Overdose 0 1 Fatal Overdose 0 0

Patrol Checks 172 730 Traffic Stops 18 100 Follow Ups 0 10
 **** Notes ****



to

April Town Stats,

Fire =  37

AFA = 3

Brush= 1 Fire Calls dispatched in the Town of CB = 25

EMS = 23 Fire Calls dispatched in the Town of NB = 12

Fire’s = 1

(Chimney, House, Barn, vehicle, ETC)

Hazmat = 0 Fire Drill:  Search and Rescue

Investigation = 0

MVA = 0

Helicopter Landing = 0

Service = 8

Water Rescue = 1

Fundraising:



EMS = 80

Chest Pains = 7 Other Non- Emergent dispatched Calls = 0

Diabetic Emergency = 1

Fire Standby = 4 EMS Calls dispatched in the Town of CB = 61

MVC = 0 EMS Calls dispatched in the Town of NB = 19

Overdose = 2

Psychiatric Emerg. = 0

Respiratory Distress = 6

Seizures = 5 EMS DRILL : Pediatric Emergencies

Stroke (CVA) = 1

Unconscious Subj. = 4



Choking =   0

Syncope =   8

Suicide =   0

Gunshot = 0

Head Injury =  1

Hypertension = 1

Assault = 1

Hemorrhage- 5

Cardiac Arrest - 5

Altered Mental Status - 3

Allergic Reaction - 0

Traumatic Injury = 6

Sick Person= 17

Welfare Check=4



   #O-22-5 

Passed      

Effective   

 

 

AN ORDINANCE  

 

OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF CHESAPEAKE BEACH, MARYLAND,  

ADOPTING THE ANNUAL BUDGET FOR THE WATER PARK  

OF THE TOWN OF CHESAPEAKE BEACH  

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR JULY 1, 2022 TO JUNE 30, 2023. 

 

WHEREAS, Chesapeake Beach, Maryland (the “Town”) is a municipal corporation of the 

State of Maryland, organized and operating under a Charter adopted in 1963, in accordance with 

Article XI-E of the Constitution of Maryland and the Local Government Article of the Annotated 

Code of Maryland; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Md. Code Ann., Local Gov’t Art., § 5-205 and Section C-706 of 

its Charter, the Town is empowered to establish an annual budget; and 

WHEREAS, after due notice, a public hearing was held by the Town Council on May 19, 

2022, to consider the budget for the Town’s Water Park for FY ’23, and, at said hearing, all of 

those who desired to be heard were heard and their testimony recorded, and all facts relevant to 

the subject matter of the budget have been duly and carefully considered. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF 

CHESAPEAKE BEACH THAT: 

Section 1. The annual budget for the Water Park of the Town of Chesapeake Beach 

for the Fiscal Year 2023 is hereby adopted in the form as set forth in the attached Exhibit A hereto. 

AS CERTIFIED by their signatures below, the members of the Town Council affirm that 

this Ordinance was introduced at the Town Council meeting held on the 21st  day of April, 2022, 

that a public hearing was held on the 19th  day of May, 2022 and that a vote was taken in accordance 

with Section C-309 of the Town Charter.  The vote of the Council was tallied and _____ votes of 

approval and ___ votes of disapproval were cast.  The resulting majority of the Council 

(approved/disapproved) the passage of this Ordinance this 19th  day of May, 2022.  If signed by 

the Mayor below, the Mayor approves this Ordinance pursuant to Section C-310 of the Charter 

this 19th  day of May, 2022.  This Ordinance shall become effective at the expiration of twenty 

(20) calendar days from the date of the Mayor’s approval or seven (7) days after the last required 



  

 

 

 2 

publication, whichever is later, pursuant to Section C-309 of the Charter, currently published in 

Volume II of the Municipal Charters of Maryland. 

 

 

CHESAPEAKE BEACH, MARYLAND 

 

 

       ________________________________ 

       Patrick J. Mahoney, Mayor 

 

 

       ________________________________ 

       Lawrence P. Jaworski, Council VP  

 

 

       ________________________________ 

       Valerie L. Beaudin, Councilwoman 

 

 

       ________________________________ 

       L. Charles Fink, Councilman 

 

 

       ________________________________ 

       Margaret P. Hartman, Councilwoman 

 

 

       ________________________________ 

       Gregory J. Morris, Councilman 

 

 

________________________________ 

       Keith L. Pardieck, Councilman 

 

 

 



Water Park Fund

Fisca Year 2023

Exhibit A

As Introduced

Annual Budget FY 2023

Income

500-430130 · Reserves Allocation 311,858

500-450110 · Birthday Parties 17,500

500-450120 · Daily Admissions 717,500

500-450130 · Group Sales 12,000

500-450135 · Miscellaneous Income 500

500-450160 · Rentals - Cabanas and Lockers 45,000

500-450165 · Rentals - Pavilion 1,000

500-450170 · Retail Sales 260,000

500-450175 · Season Passes 130,000

500-450190 · Swim Lessons 13,000

500-495000 · Investment Interest 1,000

Total Income $1,509,358

Cost of Goods Sold

500-6925-542500 · Cost of Goods Sold 103,174

Total COGS 103,174

Gross Profit 1,406,184

Expense

500-6925-602000 · Salaries and Wages 479,120

500-6925-602010 · Wages - Admin & Maint Support 240,000

500-6925-602050 · FICA 56,856

500-6925-602100 · Medical & Life Insurance 73,583

500-6925-602300 · Retirement 42,525

500-6925-623900 · Professional Fees 50,000

500-6925-632800 · Bank & Credit Card Charge 70,000

500-6925-633000 · Marketing 25,000

500-6925-637000 · Education & Travel 15,000

500-6925-665603 · Pool Supplies 38,000

500-6925-684600 · Chemicals 48,000

500-6925-685200 · Repairs & Maintenance 75,000

500-6925-685220 · Landscape Maintenance 8,600

500-6925-687500 · Utilities 70,000

500-6925-741000 · Capital Repairs 69,500

500-6925-780000 · Insurance 45,000

Total Expense 1,406,184

Net Income 0

 Page 1 of 1



   #O-22-6 

Passed      

Effective   

 

 

AN ORDINANCE  

 

OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF CHESAPEAKE BEACH, MARYLAND,  

ADOPTING THE ANNUAL BUDGET FOR THE UTILITY FUND  

OF THE TOWN OF CHESAPEAKE BEACH  

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR JULY 1, 2022 TO JUNE 30, 2023 

AND SETTING RATES, CHARGES AND FEES RELATED TO  

WATER AND SEWER SERVICE BY THE TOWN. 

 

WHEREAS, Chesapeake Beach, Maryland (the “Town”) is a municipal corporation of the 

State of Maryland, organized and operating under a Charter adopted in 1963, in accordance with 

Article XI-E of the Constitution of Maryland and the Local Government Article of the Annotated 

Code of Maryland; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Md. Code Ann., Local Gov’t Art., § 5-205 and Section C-706 of 

its Charter, the Town is empowered to establish an annual budget; and 

WHEREAS, after due notice, a public hearing was held by the Town Council on May 19, 

2022, to consider the budget for the Town’s Utility Fund for FY ’23 and, at said hearing, all of 

those who desired to be heard were heard and their testimony recorded, and all facts relevant to 

the subject matter of the budget have been duly and carefully considered. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF 

CHESAPEAKE BEACH THAT: 

Section 1. The annual budget for the Utility Fund of the Town of Chesapeake Beach 

for the Fiscal Year 2023 is hereby adopted in the form as set forth in the attached Exhibit A hereto. 

Section 2. The rates, fees and charges related to providing water and sewer service set 

forth in Schedule A to Exhibit A are hereby adopted. 

AS CERTIFIED by their signatures below, the members of the Town Council affirm that 

this Ordinance was introduced at the Town Council meeting held on the 21st  day of April 2022, 

that a public hearing was held on the 19th day of May, 2022, and that a vote was taken in accordance 



  

 

 

 2 

with Section C-309 of the Town Charter.  The vote of the Council was tallied and _____ votes of 

approval and ___ votes of disapproval were cast.  The resulting majority of the Council  

(approved/disapproved) the passage of this Ordinance this 19th  day of May, 2022.  If signed by 

the Mayor below, the Mayor approves this Ordinance pursuant to Section C-310 of the Charter 

this 19th  day of May, 2022.  This Ordinance shall become effective at the expiration of twenty 

(20) calendar days from the date of the Mayor’s approval or seven (7) days after the last required 

publication, whichever is later, pursuant to Section C-309 of the Charter, currently published in 

Volume II of the Municipal Charters of Maryland. 

 

 

CHESAPEAKE BEACH, MARYLAND 

 

 

       ________________________________ 

       Patrick J. Mahoney, Mayor 

 

 

       ________________________________ 

       Lawrence P. Jaworski, Council VP 

 

 

       ________________________________ 

       Valerie L. Beaudin, Councilwoman 

 

 

       ________________________________ 

       L. Charles Fink, Councilman 

 

 

       ________________________________ 

       Margaret P. Hartman, Councilwoman 

 

 

       ________________________________ 

       Gregory J. Morris, Councilman 

 

 

________________________________ 

       Keith L. Pardieck, Councilman 

 

 



Utility Fund

Fiscal Year 2023

Exhibit A

As Introduced

Annual Budget FY 2023

Revenue

Revenues - Sewer

400-440010 · Sewer Usage Charge 783,480$                                  

400-440020 · Sewer Miscellaneous Income 1,000$                                      

400-440040 · Penalties and Interest 2,000$                                      

400-450000 · Investment Interest 1,500$                                      

Total Revenues - Sewer 787,980$                                 

Revenues - Water

400-441010 · Water Usage Charges 348,380$                                  

400-441020 · Water Miscellaneous Income 2,000$                                      

400-441030 · Water Penalties and Interest 2,000$                                      

Total Revenues - Water 352,380$                                 

Other Income:

400-430140 · Reserves from UF Savings 425,184$                                  

400-460000 · Fixed Fee 562,898$                                  

400-460050 · Infrastructure Fees 18,000$                                    

400-460100 · Sewer Capital Connection Fee 360,000$                                  

400-460200 · Water Capital Connection Fee 120,000$                                  

Total Other Income 1,486,082$                               

Total Income 2,626,442$                             

Expenses

400-6850-662200 · Meters/MXU's 43,000$                                    

400-6850-715100 · Water Plant Repair & Maint 30,000$                                    

400-6850-715500 · Water Testing 13,000$                                    

400-6900-621400 · Engineering & Prof Fees 6,000$                                      

400-6900-621501 · SAFETY 7,500$                                      

400-6900-626001 · Pump Station Repair & Maint 50,000$                                    

400-6900-630500 · Supplies 30,000$                                    

400-6900-631500 · Postage 4,500$                                      

400-6900-632400 · Miss Utility Fees 1,500$                                      

400-6900-632500 · Line Repairs & Maintanance 95,000$                                    

400-6900-632800 · Banking Fees 8,000$                                      

400-6900-670000 · TPF Fixed Costs 946,010$                                  

400-6900-670100 · TPF Variable 421,396$                                  

400-6900-687500 · Utilities 70,000$                                    

400-6900-717600 · Misc. 500$                                         

400-6900-780000 · Property Insurance 15,002$                                    

400-6900-XXXXXX · Connection Fee Reimbursement 300,000$                                  

Total Expenses 2,041,408$                             

Debt Service

400-6900-748100 · Principal - 2008 SRF Loan 1.1% 287,098$                                  

400-6700-748300 · Principal - ARRA Loan (2009) 1.0% 36,562$                                    

400-6700-719300 · Principal - 2014 - ENR 1.0% 190,427$                                  

400-6900-625300 · Interest Expense 70,948$                                    

Total Debt Service 585,034$                                 

Total Expenses 2,626,442$                             

FY Surplus -$                                              

 Page 1 of 1











   #O-22-7 

Passed   ___________ 

Effective___________ 

 

 AN ORDINANCE  

OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF CHESAPEAKE BEACH, MARYLAND,  

AMENDING THE ANNUAL BUDGET FOR THE GENERAL FUND OF 

THE TOWN OF CHESAPEAKE BEACH FOR THE FISCAL YEAR JULY 

1, 2020 TO JUNE 30, 2021 TO RECONCILE EXPENSES AND INCOME 

AND RATIFY OVEREXPENDITURES. 

 

WHEREAS, Chesapeake Beach, Maryland (the “Town”) is a municipal corporation of the 

State of Maryland, organized and operating under a Charter adopted in 1963, in accordance with 

Article XI-E of the Constitution of Maryland and the Local Government Article of the Annotated 

Code of Maryland; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Md. Code Ann., Local Gov’t Art., § 5-205 and Section C-707 of 

the Charter of Chesapeake Beach, the Town is empowered to establish an annual budget; and  

WHEREAS, pursuant to § 5-205(b) of the Local Government Article a municipality may 

not expend funds not appropriated in its annual budget for the purpose for which they are to be 

spent; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to § 5-205(b) of the Local Government Article, a municipality may 

amend an adopted budget to expend funds not previously appropriated upon a 2/3 vote of the 

legislative body; and 

WHEREAS, after due notice and a public hearing, the Town Council adopted an annual 

budget for the General Fund on April 15, 2021; and  

WHEREAS, it has come to the attention of the Town Treasurer that the Town incurred 

certain expenses during FY ’21 that exceeded the amounts budgeted because of under planned  

Board of Elections, Rental Inspection, Insurance, Retirement, and Recycle Bins had inadequate 

funds to cover their cost due to increased expenses and  



  

 

 

 2 

WHEREAS, the over expenditures can be offset by Town Hall Building Maintenance, 

Economic Development Expenses, Professional Fees, Medical and Life Insurance  and Supplies 

line items. 

WHEREAS, the Town Council wishes to ratify those expenditures and to amend the          

FY 21 General Fund budget to appropriate the necessary funds. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF 

CHESAPEAKE BEACH THAT: 

Section 1. The adopted budget for the General Fund of the Town of Chesapeake Beach 

for the Fiscal Year 2021 is hereby amended as set forth in the attached Exhibit A hereto. 

Section 2.  In all other respects the budget for the General Fund, as adopted on April 

15, 2021, shall remain as adopted and in full force and effect, subject to prior duly enacted 

amendments, with respect to revenues and expenditures for the Fiscal Year 2021. 

AS CERTIFIED by their signatures below, the members of the Town Council affirm that 

this Ordinance was introduced at the Town Council meeting held on the 21st  day of April, 2022, 

that a public hearing was held on the 19th day of May, 2022, and that a vote was taken in accordance 

with Section C-309 of the Town Charter.  The vote of the Council was tallied and _______ votes 

of approval and ______ votes of disapproval were cast.  The resulting affirmative vote of at least 

2/3 the Council _____________________ (approved/disapproved) the passage of this Ordinance 

this 19th  day of May 2022.  If signed by the Mayor below, the Mayor approves this Ordinance 

pursuant to Section C-310 of the Charter.  This Ordinance shall become effective at the expiration 

of twenty (20) calendar days from the date of the Mayor’s approval or seven (7) days after the last 

required publication, whichever is later, pursuant to Section C-309 of the Charter, currently 

published in Volume II of the Municipal Charters of Maryland. 



  

 

 

 3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CHESAPEAKE BEACH, MARYLAND 

 

 

       ________________________________ 

       Patrick J. Mahoney, Mayor 

 

 

       ________________________________ 

       Valerie L. Beaudin, Councilwoman 

 

        

________________________________ 

       Margaret P. Hartman, Councilwoman 

 

 

       ________________________________ 

       Gregory J. Morris, Councilman 

 

 

       ________________________________ 

       Lawrence P. Jaworski, Councilman 

 

 

________________________________ 

       Keith L. Pardieck, Councilman 

 

 

________________________________ 

       L. Charles Fink, Councilman 



 Annual Budget

FY 2021 
 Amendment 

 As Amended - 

Annual Budget

FY 2021

Income

Local Sources

100-410000 · Real Estate Taxes 2,684,296$                           2,684,296$            

100-410100 · Admission & Amusement Tax 1,441,654$                            1,441,654$             

100-410115 · Hotel Tax 100,000$                              100,000$               

100-410120 · Operating Property Tax 55,846$                                55,846$                 

100-410125 · Penalties & Interest 3,000$                                  3,000$                   

100-410130 · Liquor License 3,000$                                  3,000$                   

100-410135 · Traders License - County 600$                                     600$                      

100-410140 · Zoning Permits & Site Plans 19,000$                                19,000$                 

100-410145 · Interest on savings & investmen 120,000$                              120,000$               

100-410160 · Bayfront Park Admissions 50,000$                                50,000$                 

100-410165 · Tower Site Rental 110,000$                               110,000$                

100-410170 · Cable Franchise Fee 100,000$                              100,000$               

100-410175 · Speed Camera & Other Fines 50,000$                                50,000$                 

100-410230 · Misc. Income 5,000$                                  5,000$                   

Total Local Sources 4,742,396$                           4,742,396$            

Federal, State,& County Sources

100-420100 · State income taxes 1,000,000$                           1,000,000$            

100-420105 · Highway User Revenues 363,112$                               363,112$                

100-420115 · State Aid Police Protection 57,864$                                57,864$                 

100-420115 · State DNR Critical Area Grant 2,800$                                  2,800$                   

Total Federal, State,& County Sources 1,423,776$                           1,423,776$            

Other Income

100-432200 Miscellaneous Grants 50,000$                                50,000$                 

Total Other Income 50,000$                                50,000$                 

Total Income 6,216,172$                            6,216,172$             

General Fund

Fiscal Year 2021

Exhibit A

        Page 1 of 4



 Annual Budget

FY 2021 
 Amendment 

 As Amended - 

Annual Budget

FY 2021

General Fund

Fiscal Year 2021

Exhibit A

Expense

GENERAL GOVERNMENT

Salaries, Wages, Payr Txs, Bene

100-6000-602000 · Salaries - Office 508,204$                              508,204$               

100-6000-602050 · Fica Expense 42,597$                                42,597$                 

100-6000-602100 · Medical and Life Insurance 122,639$                              (6,513)$           116,126$                

100-6000-602300 · Retirement 86,481$                                86,481$                 

100-6000-602400 · Continuing Education 20,000$                                20,000$                 

Total Salaries, Wages, Payr Txs, Bene 779,921$                              (6,513)$           773,408$               

Contracted Services

100-6000-620400 · Audit 35,068$                                35,068$                 

100-6000-620600 · Legal Counsel 66,000$                                66,000$                 

100-6000-620800 · SDAT Fees 11,558$                                 11,558$                  

100-6000-621100 · Annual Software Agr 45,000$                                45,000$                 

100-6000-621200 · Planning & Zoning 90,000$                                90,000$                 

100-6000-621400 · Engineering 80,000$                                80,000$                 

100-6000-621600 · IT Support 30,000$                                30,000$                 

100-6000-622500 · T.H. Building Maintenance 40,000$                                (10,072)$         29,928$                 

100-6000-623300 · Newsletter 10,000$                                10,000$                 

100-6000-623400 · Library RENT Grant 43,168$                                43,168$                 

100-6000-623900 · Professional Fees 11,000$                                 (5,923)$          5,077$                   

100-6000-624500 · Web Maintenance 5,000$                                  5,000$                   

100-6000-624700 · Document Imaging 4,000$                                  4,000$                   

Total Contracted Services 470,794$                              (15,995)$         454,799$               

Other Charges

100-6000-631101 · Board of Elections 6,000$                                  10,072$          16,072$                 

100-6000-631210 · Legislative Education / Travel 29,500$                                29,500$                 

100-6000-631220 · Dues & Subscriptions 12,000$                                12,000$                 

100-6000-631300 · Grants to Local Orgs 17,500$                                17,500$                 

100-6000-632000 · Misc. Expense 5,000$                                  5,000$                   

100-6000-632300 · Office Expense 57,000$                                57,000$                 

100-6000-634101 · Council Compensation 18,000$                                18,000$                 

100-6000-634102 · Mayor Compensation 18,000$                                18,000$                 

100-6000-634103 · FICA Exp-Mayor & Council 2,754$                                  2,754$                   

100-6000-634500 · Town Hall Telephone 15,150$                                 15,150$                  

100-6000-635000 · Town Hall Utilities 20,000$                                20,000$                 

100-6000-636101 · Special Events 140,000$                              140,000$               

100-6000-636102 · Stars and Stripes Revenue -$                                         -$                          

100-6000-636103 · Special Events - Moonlight Cruises -$                                         -$                          

100-6000-636201 · Economic Development 44,000$                                (15,073)$         28,927$                 

100-6000-636203 · Economic Development Merch -$                                         -$                          

100-6000-637010 · Opioid Awareness Committee 3,000$                                  3,000$                   

100-6000-637020 · Green Team 7,000$                                  7,000$                   

100-6000-637030· Rental Inspection Services 10,000$                                15,073$          25,073$                 

100-6000-780000 · Insurance 63,626$                                6,668$            70,294$                 

100-6450-602050 · FICA -$                                         -$                          

Total Other Charges 468,530$                              16,740$          485,270$               

Total GENERAL GOVERNMENT 1,719,245$                            (5,768)$          1,713,477$             

        Page 2 of 4



 Annual Budget

FY 2021 
 Amendment 

 As Amended - 

Annual Budget

FY 2021

General Fund

Fiscal Year 2021

Exhibit A

PUBLIC SAFETY

100-6450-645500 · Police - Deputy in Residence 1,229,551$                            1,229,551$             

100-6450-646000 · Bayfront Park and Town Beautification 60,500$                                60,500$                 

100-6450-646500 · North Beach VFD Cap Exp 50,000$                                50,000$                 

Total PUBLIC SAFETY 1,340,051$                            -$                   1,340,051$             

PUBLIC WKS

Salaries and Benefits

100-6500-602000 · P.W. - Salaries 454,844$                              454,844$               

100-6500-602050 · P.W. - Fica Expense 39,905$                                39,905$                 

100-6500-602100 · P.W. - Medical & Life Ins. 143,641$                               143,641$                

100-6500-602300 · P.W. - Retirement Plan 54,303$                                5,748$            60,051$                 

100-6500-602400 · P.W. - Continuing Education 7,500$                                  7,500$                   

Total Salaries and Benefits 700,193$                              5,748$            705,941$               

Supplies (Public Works)

100-6500-665200 · Gasoline/Tolls 24,750$                                24,750$                 

100-6500-665400 · Equipment Repair & Maint 35,000$                                35,000$                 

100-6500-665600 · Supplies 15,000$                                (2,367)$          12,633$                 

Total Supplies (Public Works) 74,750$                                (2,367)$          72,383$                 

Contracted Services

100-6500-672000 · Holiday Lights - Maint. 93,204$                                93,204$                 

100-6500-673000 · Road Repairs & Maintenance 20,000$                                20,000$                 

100-6500-674000 · Trash Removal Service 550,000$                              550,000$               

100-6500-675000 · Recycle Bins 10,000$                                2,367$            12,367$                 

Total Contracted Services 673,204$                              2,367$            675,571$               

Other Charges (P.W.)

100-6500-684300 · CBOCS Oyster Program 6,900$                                  6,900$                   

100-6500-684900 · Miscellaneous 2,000$                                  2,000$                   

100-6500-685200 · Property Maintenance 45,000$                                45,000$                 

100-6500-685220 · Landscape Maintenance 153,380$                              153,380$               

100-6500-685240 · Tree Trimming and Removals 10,000$                                10,000$                 

100-6500-685500 · Recreation - Operations 70,000$                                70,000$                 

100-6500-686000 · Snow & Ice Removal 40,000$                                40,000$                 

100-6500-686500 · Street Lights 63,000$                                63,000$                 

100-6500-687000 · Telephone 8,100$                                  8,100$                   

100-6500-687500 · Utilities 6,000$                                  6,000$                   

Total Other Charges (P.W.) 404,380$                              -$                   404,380$               

Total PUBLIC WKS 1,852,527$                           5,748$            1,858,275$            

        Page 3 of 4



 Annual Budget

FY 2021 
 Amendment 

 As Amended - 

Annual Budget

FY 2021

General Fund

Fiscal Year 2021

Exhibit A

Total General Fund Capital Expenditure 1,279,199$                            1,279,199$      1,279,199$             

DEBT SERVICE

100-8000-807000 · DNR #7 Seawall $25,150 (FY21) 25,150$                                   25,150$                   

Total 8000 · DEBT SERVICE 25,150$                                   -$                     25,150$                   

Total Expense 6,216,172$                              1,279,179$       6,216,152$              

FY Surplus

*** Local Taxes

Property tax shall be imposed and collected at the rate of $.3309 per $100 of property value.

        Page 4 of 4



   #O-22-8 

Passed   ___________ 

Effective___________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE  

OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF CHESAPEAKE BEACH, MARYLAND,  

AMENDING THE ANNUAL BUDGET FOR THE WATER RECLAMATION  

TREATMENT PLANT FUND OF THE TOWN OF CHESAPEAKE BEACH  

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR JULY 1, 2020 TO JUNE 30, 2021 TO RECONCILE 

EXPENSES AND INCOME AND RATIFY OVEREXPENDITURES. 

 

WHEREAS, Chesapeake Beach, Maryland (the “Town”) is a municipal corporation of the 

State of Maryland, organized and operating under a Charter adopted in 1963, in accordance with 

Article XI-E of the Constitution of Maryland and the Local Government Article of the Annotated 

Code of Maryland; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Md. Code Ann., Local Gov’t Art., § 5-205 and Section C-707 of 

the Charter of Chesapeake Beach, the Town is empowered to establish an annual budget; and  

WHEREAS, pursuant to § 5-205(b) of the Local Government Article a municipality may 

not expend funds not appropriated in its annual budget for the purpose for which they are to be 

spent; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to § 5-205(b) of the Local Government Article, a municipality may 

amend an adopted budget to expend funds not previously appropriated upon a 2/3 vote of the 

legislative body; and 

WHEREAS, after due notice and a public hearing, the Town Council adopted an annual 

budget for the Wastewater Reclamation Treatment Plant on April 15, 2021; and  

WHEREAS, it has come to the attention of the Town Treasurer that the Town incurred 

certain expenses during Fiscal Year 2021 that exceeded the amounts budgeted because 

Engineering and Professional Fees, Chemicals, and Utilities line items had inadequate funds to 

cover their cost due to increased expenses; and 



  

 

 

 2 

WHEREAS, the over expenditures can be offset by the Lab Analysis and Supplies, Office 

Expense, Safety, Telephone, Equipment Purchases  and Landfill Tipping Fees line items; and  

WHEREAS, the Town Council wishes to ratify those expenditures and to amend the Fiscal 

Year 2021 Wastewater Reclamation Treatment Plant Fund budget to appropriate the necessary 

funds. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF 

CHESAPEAKE BEACH THAT: 

Section 1. The annual budget for the Water Reclamation Treatment Plant Fund of the 

Town of Chesapeake Beach for the Fiscal Year 2021 is hereby amended as set forth in the attached 

Exhibit A hereto.  

Section 2.  In all other respects the budget for the Utility Fund, as adopted on May 20, 

2021, shall remain as adopted and in full force and effect, subject to prior duly enacted 

amendments, with respect to revenues and expenditures for the Fiscal Year 2021. 

AS CERTIFIED by their signatures below, the members of the Town Council affirm that 

this Ordinance was introduced at the Town Council meeting held on the 21st day of April, 2022, 

that a public hearing was held on the 19th  day of May, 2022, and that a vote was taken in 

accordance with Section C-309 of the Town Charter.  The vote of the Council was tallied and 

_______ votes of approval and ______ votes of disapproval were cast.  The resulting affirmative 

vote of at least 2/3 the Council _____________________ (approved/disapproved) the passage of 

this Ordinance this 19th  day of May, 2022.  If signed by the Mayor below, the Mayor approves 

this Ordinance pursuant to Section C-310 of the Charter.  This Ordinance shall become effective 

at the expiration of twenty (20) calendar days from the date of the Mayor’s approval or seven (7) 



  

 

 

 3 

days after the last required publication, whichever is later, pursuant to Section C-309 of the 

Charter, currently published in Volume II of the Municipal Charters of Maryland. 

 

 

       CHESAPEAKE BEACH, MARYLAND 

 

 

       ________________________________ 

       Patrick J. Mahoney, Mayor 

 

 

       ________________________________ 

       Valerie L. Beaudin, Councilwoman 

 

        

________________________________ 

       Margaret P. Hartman, Councilwoman 

 

 

       ________________________________ 

       Gregory J. Morris, Councilman 

 

 

       ________________________________ 

       Lawrence P. Jaworski, Councilman 

 

 

________________________________ 

       Keith L. Pardieck, Councilman 

 

 

________________________________ 

       L. Charles Fink, Councilman 



Waste Reclamation Treatment Plant

Fiscal Year 2021

Exhibit A

Annual Budget

FY 2021 
 Amendment 

 As Amended - 

Annual Budget 

FY 2021 

Income

Fixed Income

300-430010 · Anne Arundel Fixed-10.44% 127,060$                 127,060$    

300-430020 · Calvert County - Fixed - 21.81% 245,354$                 245,354$    

300-430030 · Chesapeake Beach -Fixed -49.66% 558,657$                 558,657$    

300-430040 · North Beach - Fixed - 18.09% 203,506$                 203,506$    

Total Fixed Income 1,134,577$               -$          1,134,577$  

Variable Income

300-431010 · Anne Arundel - Variable -11.38% 82,856$                   82,856$      

300-431050 · North Beach & Calvert County - Variable - 39.89% 266,782$                 266,782$    

300-431030 · Chesapeake Beach - Variable - 48.73% 325,905$                 325,905$    

Total Variable Income 675,543$                 -$          675,543$    

Capital and Other Fixed Income

300-430010 · Anne Arundel Fixed-10.44% 30,862$                   30,862$      

300-430020 · Calvert County - Fixed - 21.81% 59,453$                   59,453$      

300-430030 · Chesapeake Beach -Fixed -49.66% 135,372$                 135,372$    

300-430040 · North Beach - Fixed - 18.09% 49,313$                   49,313$      

Total Capital and Other Fixed Income 275,000$                 -$          275,000$    

Total Income 2,085,120$              -$          2,085,120$ 



Waste Reclamation Treatment Plant

Fiscal Year 2021

Exhibit A

Annual Budget

FY 2021 
 Amendment 

 As Amended - 

Annual Budget 

FY 2021 

Expense

Fixed Costs

300-6975-601000 · Salaries and Wages 483,418$                 483,418$    

300-6975-610500 · Plant Benefits 285,692$                 285,692$    

300-6975-621000 · Administration - TCB 24,815$                   24,815$      

300-6975-621401 · Engineering & Professional Fees 25,000$                   2,811$       27,811$       

300-6975-621500 · Safety 20,000$                   (5,429)$     14,571$       

300-6975-622000 · Telephone 6,000$                     (3,496)$     2,504$        

300-6975-623000 · Lab Analysis & Supplies 70,000$                   (12,895)$    57,105$      

300-6975-626000 · Equipment Repair & Maintenance 70,000$                   70,000$      

300-6975-628000 · Equipment Purchases 75,000$                   (2,596)$     72,404$      

300-6975-628500 · TP Office Expenses 25,000$                   (2,799)$     22,201$      

300-6975-780000 · Insurance - Plant 49,652$                   49,652$      

Total Fixed Costs 1,134,577$               (24,404)$   1,110,173$   

Variable Costs

300-6975-684601 · Chemicals 150,000$                 10,474$     160,474$    

300-6975-684701 · Landfill Tipping Fees 225,543$                 (10,391)$    215,152$     

300-6975-687501 · Utilities 300,000$                 24,321$     324,321$    

Total Variable Costs 675,543$                 24,404$    699,947$    

Other Fixed Costs

300-6975-801000 · Capital Projects 275,000$                 275,000$    

Total Other Fixed Costs 275,000$                 -$          275,000$    

-$            

Total Expense 2,085,120$              -$          2,085,120$ 

Net Income -$                         -$            



   #O-22-9 

Passed   ___________ 

Effective___________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE  

OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF CHESAPEAKE BEACH, 

MARYLAND, AMENDING THE ANNUAL BUDGET FOR THE 

UTILITY FUND OF THE TOWN OF CHESAPEAKE BEACH FOR 

THE FISCAL YEAR JULY 1, 2020 TO JUNE 30, 2021 TO 

RECONCILE EXPENSES AND INCOME AND RATIFY 

OVEREXPENDITURES. 

 

WHEREAS, Chesapeake Beach, Maryland (the “Town”) is a municipal corporation of the 

State of Maryland, organized and operating under a Charter adopted in 1963, in accordance with 

Article XI-E of the Constitution of Maryland and the Local Government Article of the Annotated 

Code of Maryland; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Md. Code Ann., Local Gov’t Art., § 5-205 and Section C-707 of 

the Charter of Chesapeake Beach, the Town is empowered to establish an annual budget; and 

WHEREAS, on or about May 20, 2021, following required advertisement and public 

hearing, the Town Council approved a budget ordinance for the Town’s Utility Fund for Fiscal 

Year 2021; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to § 5-205(b) of the Local Government Article a municipality may 

not expend funds not appropriated in its annual budget for the purpose for which they are to be 

spent; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to § 5-205(b) of the Local Government, a municipality may amend 

an adopted budget to expend funds not previously appropriated upon a 2/3 vote of the legislative 

body; and 

WHEREAS, after the adoption of the Utility Fund budget for Fiscal Year 2021, the Town 

Treasurer became aware that the Treatment Plant variable line item expense had inadequate funds 

to cover costs and must be off-set with the Treatment Plant Fixed line item expense; and 



  

 

 

 2 

WHEREAS, the Town Council wishes to ratify those expenditures and to amend the Fiscal 

Year 2021 Utility Fund budget to appropriate the necessary funds. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF 

CHESAPEAKE BEACH THAT: 

Section 1. The annual budget for the Utility Fund of Chesapeake Beach for the Fiscal 

Year 2021 is hereby amended as shown on the attached Exhibit A. 

Section 2.  In all other respects the budget for the Utility Fund, as adopted on May 20, 

2021, shall remain as adopted and in full force and effect, subject to prior duly enacted 

amendments, with respect to revenues and expenditures for the Fiscal Year 2021. 

AS CERTIFIED by their signatures below, the members of the Town Council affirm that 

this Ordinance was introduced at the Town Council meeting held on the 21st day of April, 2022, 

that a public hearing was held on the 19th  day of May, 2022, and that a vote was taken in 

accordance with Section C-309 of the Town Charter.  The vote of the Council was tallied and 

_______ votes of approval and ______ votes of disapproval were cast.  The resulting affirmative 

vote of at least 2/3 the Council _____________________ (approved/disapproved) the passage of 

this Ordinance this 19th  day of May 2022.  If signed by the Mayor below, the Mayor approves this 

Ordinance pursuant to Section C-310 of the Charter.  This Ordinance shall become effective at the 

expiration of twenty (20) calendar days from the date of the Mayor’s approval or seven (7) days 

after the last required publication, whichever is later, pursuant to Section C-309 of the Charter, 

currently published in Volume II of the Municipal Charters of Maryland. 

 

 

 



  

 

 

 3 

 

       CHESAPEAKE BEACH, MARYLAND 

 

 

       ________________________________ 

       Patrick J. Mahoney, Mayor 

 

 

       ________________________________ 

       Valerie L. Beaudin, Councilwoman 

 

        

________________________________ 

       Margaret P. Hartman, Councilwoman 

 

 

       ________________________________ 

       Gregory J. Morris, Councilman 

 

 

       ________________________________ 

       Lawrence P. Jaworski, Councilman 

 

 

________________________________ 

       Keith L. Pardieck, Councilman 

 

 

________________________________ 

       L. Charles Fink, Councilman 

 

 



             Utility Fund
Annual Budget

FY 2021
 Amendment 

As Amended - 

Annual Budget 

FY 2021 

Revenues - Sewer

400-440010 · Sewer Usage Charge 701,083$                           701,083$                        

400-440040 · Penalties and Interest 1,368$                               1,368$                            

400-450000 · Investment Interest 8,208$                               8,208$                            

Total Revenues - Sewer 710,659$                           710,659$                        

Revenues - Water

400-441010 · Water Usage Charges 275,937$                           275,937$                        

400-441020 · Water Miscellaneous Income 2,160$                               2,160$                            

400-441030 · Water Penalities and Interest 3,284$                               3,284$                            

Total Revenues - Water 281,381$                           281,381$                        

Revenues - Other

400-430130 · Unallocated reserves from General Fund 500,000$                           500,000$                        

400-430140 · Unallocated reserves from UF MLGIP 1,494,681$                        1,494,681$                      

400-460000 · Fixed Fee 489,660$                           489,660$                        

400-460050 · Infrastructure Fees 16,488$                             16,488$                          

400-460100 · Sewer Capital Connection Fee 324,000$                           324,000$                        

400-460200 · Water Capital Connection Fee 108,000$                           108,000$                        

Total Other Income 2,932,829$                        -$                    2,932,829$                      

Total Income 3,924,869$                        -$                    3,924,869$                      

Utility Fund

Fiscal Year 2021

Exhibit A

 Page 1 of 2



             Utility Fund
Annual Budget

FY 2021
 Amendment 

As Amended - 

Annual Budget 

FY 2021 

Utility Fund

Fiscal Year 2021

Exhibit A

Expense

400-6850-662200 · Meters / MXU's 38,000$                             38,000$                          

400-6850-715100 · Water Plant Repair & Maint 435,000$                           435,000$                        

400-6850-715500 · Water Testing 10,000$                             10,000$                          

400-6900-621400 · Engineering & Prof Fees 5,000$                               5,000$                            

400-6900-621501 · SAFETY 6,500$                               6,500$                            

400-6900-626001   Pump Station Repair & Maint 45,000$                             45,000$                          

400-6900-630500 · Supplies 25,000$                             25,000$                          

400-6900-631500 · Postage 4,500$                               4,500$                            

400-6900-632400 · Miss Utility Fees 1,500$                               1,500$                            

400-6900-632500 · Line Repairs & Maintanance 70,000$                             70,000$                          

400-6900-632800 · Banking Fees 5,000$                               5,000$                            

400-6900-670000 · TPF Fixed Costs 694,029$                           (60,164)$         633,865$                        

400-6900-670100 · TPF Variable Costs 325,905$                           60,164$          386,069$                        

400-6900-687500 · Utilities 70,000$                             70,000$                          

400-6900-717600 · Misc 500$                                  500$                               

400-6900-780000 · Property Insurance 15,002$                             15,002$                          

400-6900-800000 · Savings Account for ENR principal 313,325$                           313,325$                        

Total Expenses 2,064,261$                        -$                    2,064,261$                      

Debt Service

400-6900-719300 · Principal - 2014 - ENR 280,884$                           280,884$                        

400-6900-748100 · Principal - 2008 SRF Loan 35,842$                             35,842$                          

400-6900-748300 · Principal - ARRA Loan (2009) 186,675$                           186,675$                        

400-6850-719200 · Principal - DHCD 2010 Bond 1,257,800$                        1,257,800$                      

400-6900-625300 · Interest Expense 99,407$                             99,407$                          

Total Debt Service 1,860,608$                        1,860,608$                      

Total Expense 3,924,869$                        -$                    3,924,869$                      

FY Surplus -$                                       -$                                    

 Page 2 of 2



   #O-22-10 

Passed   ___________ 

Effective___________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE  

OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF CHESAPEAKE BEACH, MARYLAND, 

AMENDING THE ANNUAL BUDGET FOR THE WATER PARK FUND 

OF THE TOWN OF CHESAPEAKE BEACH FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 

JULY 1, 2020 TO JUNE 30, 2021 TO RECONCILE EXPENSES AND 

INCOME AND TO RATIFY OVEREXPENDITURES. 

 

WHEREAS, Chesapeake Beach, Maryland (the “Town”) is a municipal corporation of the 

State of Maryland, organized and operating under a Charter adopted in 1963, in accordance with 

Article XI-E of the Constitution of Maryland and the Local Government Article of the Annotated 

Code of Maryland; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Md. Code Ann., Local Gov’t Art., § 5-205 and Section C-707 of 

the Charter of Chesapeake Beach, the Town is empowered to establish an annual budget; and 

WHEREAS, on or about May 20, 2021, following required advertisement and public 

hearing, the Town Council approved a budget ordinance for the Town’s Water Park Fund for Fiscal 

Year 2021; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to § 5-205(b) of the Local Government Article a municipality may 

not expend funds not appropriated in its annual budget for the purpose for which they are to be 

spent; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to § 5-205(b) of the Local Government, a municipality may amend 

an adopted budget to expend funds not previously appropriated upon a 2/3 vote of the legislative 

body; and 

WHEREAS, after the adoption of the Water Park Fund budget for Fiscal Year 2021, the 

Town incurred certain expenses during FY ’21 that exceeded the amounts budgeted because of 

under planned  Retirement budget and Insurance had inadequate funds to cover the cost due to 

increased expenses; and  



  

 

 

 2 

WHEREAS, the over expenditures can be offset by the Professional Fees and Medical and 

Life Insurance line items; and  

WHEREAS, the Town Council wishes to ratify those expenditures and to amend the Fiscal 

Year 2021 Water Park budget to appropriate the necessary funds. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF 

CHESAPEAKE BEACH THAT: 

Section 1. The annual budget for the Water Park Fund of the Town of Chesapeake 

Beach for the Fiscal Year 2021 is hereby amended as set forth in the attached Exhibit A hereto. 

Section 2. In all other respects the budget for the Water Park Fund, as adopted on May 

20, 2021, shall remain as adopted and in full force and effect, subject to prior duly enacted 

amendments, with respect to revenues and expenditures for the Fiscal Year 2021.  

AS CERTIFIED by their signatures below, the members of the Town Council affirm that 

this Ordinance was introduced at the Town Council meeting held on the 21st  day of April, 2022, 

that a public hearing was held on the 19th  day of May, 2022, and that a vote was taken in 

accordance with Section C-309 of the Town Charter.  The vote of the Council was tallied and 

_______ votes of approval and ______ votes of disapproval were cast.  The resulting affirmative 

vote of at least 2/3 the Council _____________________ (approved/disapproved) the passage of 

this Ordinance this 19th  day of May, 2022.  If signed by the Mayor below, the Mayor approves 

this Ordinance pursuant to Section C-310 of the Charter.  This Ordinance shall become effective 

at the expiration of twenty (20) calendar days from the date of the Mayor’s approval or seven (7) 

days after the last required publication, whichever is later, pursuant to Section C-309 of the 

Charter, currently published in Volume II of the Municipal Charters of Maryland. 

 

 



  

 

 

 3 

 

 

 

 

CHESAPEAKE BEACH, MARYLAND 

 

 

       ________________________________ 

       Patrick J. Mahoney, Mayor 

        

 

________________________________ 

       Valerie L. Beaudin, Councilwoman 

 

        

________________________________ 

       Margaret P. Hartman, Councilwoman 

 

 

       ________________________________ 

       Gregory J. Morris, Councilman 

 

 

       ________________________________ 

       Lawrence P. Jaworski, Councilman 

 

 

________________________________ 

       Keith L. Pardieck, Councilman 

 

 

________________________________ 

       L. Charles Fink, Councilman 

 



Water Park Fund

Fiscal Year 2021

Exhibit A

Annual Budget

 FY 2021
Amendment

As Amended 

-

Annual 

Budget

FY 2021

Income

500-450110 · Reserves Allocation 108,716$                                      108,716$       

500-450110 · Birthday Parties 30,000$                                       30,000$        

500-450120 · Daily Admissions 750,000$                                     750,000$      

500-450130 · Group Sales 60,000$                                       60,000$        

500-450135 · Miscellaneous Income 500$                                           500$             

500-450160 · Rentals - Cabanas and Lockers 60,000$                                       60,000$        

500-450165 · Rentals - Pavilion 1,000$                                         1,000$           

500-450170 · Retail Store Sales 350,000$                                     350,000$      

500-450175 · Season Passes 55,000$                                       55,000$        

500-450190 · Swim Lessons 12,000$                                       12,000$         

500-495000 · Investment Interest 12,000$                                       12,000$         

Total Income 1,439,216$                                   1,439,216$    

Cost of Goods Sold

500-6925-542500 · Cost of Goods Sold 135,000$                                     135,000$       

Total COGS 135,000$                                     135,000$       

Gross Profit 1,304,216$                                   1,304,216$    

 Page 1 of 2



Water Park Fund

Fiscal Year 2021

Exhibit A

Annual Budget

 FY 2021
Amendment

As Amended 

-

Annual 

Budget

FY 2021

Expense

500-6925-602000 · Salaries and Wages 516,877$                                     516,877$       

500-6925-602010 · Wages - Admin & Maint Support 218,182$                                      218,182$       

500-6925-602050 · FICA 67,478$                                       67,478$        

500-6925-602100 · Medical & Life Insurance 47,794$                                       (1,529)$       46,265$        

500-6925-602300 · Retirement 30,785$                                       1,529$        32,314$         

500-6925-623900 · Professional Fees 50,000$                                       (17,702)$     32,298$        

500-6925-632800 · Bank & Credit Card Charge 40,000$                                       40,000$        

500-6925-633000 · Marketing 35,000$                                       35,000$        

500-6925-637000 · Education & Travel 12,000$                                       12,000$         

500-6925-665603 · Pool Supplies 42,500$                                       42,500$        

500-6925-684600 · Chemicals 35,000$                                       35,000$        

500-6925-685200 · Repairs & Maintenance 100,000$                                     100,000$       

500-6925-685220 · Landscape Maintenance 8,600$                                         8,600$          

500-6925-687500 · Utilities 55,000$                                       55,000$        

500-6925-741000 · Capital Repairs 25,000$                                       25,000$        

500-6925-780000 · Insurance 20,000$                                       17,702$      37,702$        

Total Expense 1,304,216$                                   1,304,216$    

Surplus / Loss -$                                                

 Page 2 of 2



 

 - 1 - 

 

      Introduced ____________ 

Passed   ______________ 

Effective______________ 

 

ORDINANCE NO. O-22-11 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF CHESAPEAKE BEACH, 

MARYLAND, AMENDING THE ADOPTED GENERAL FUND BUDGET 

FOR THE TOWN OF CHESAPEAKE BEACH FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 

FROM JULY 1, 2021, TO JUNE 30, 2022, TO ADD FUNDS IN THE 

AMOUNT OF TWENTY-FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($25,000.00) IN 

GENERAL FUND HOTEL TAX AND GENERAL GOVERNMENT 

SALARIES AND WAGES. 

 

WHEREAS, Chesapeake Beach (the “Town”) is a municipal corporation of the State of 

Maryland, organized and operating in accordance with Article XI-E of the Constitution of 

Maryland and Md. Code Ann., Local Government Article, Title 4; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Local Government Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland 

and to Section C-707 and Section C-808 of the Charter of Chesapeake Beach, Chesapeake Beach 

is empowered to establish an annual budget; and 

WHEREAS, on or about April 15, 2021, following required advertisement and public 

hearing, the Town Council approved a budget ordinance for the Town’s General Fund for Fiscal 

Year 2022; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to § 5-205(b) of the Local Government Article a municipality may  

not expend funds not appropriated in its annual budget for the purpose for which they are to be 

spent; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to § 5-205(b) of the Local Government, a municipality may amend 

an adopted budget to expend funds not previously appropriated upon a 2/3 vote of the legislative 

body; and 



 

 - 2 - 

 

WHEREAS, the adopted budget for FY 2022 appropriates Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars 

($25,000) for the new Treasurer; and 

WHEREAS, it has become apparent that the Town’s requirement to have a new Treasurer 

trained by the existing Treasurer; and 

WHEREAS, the Town desires to prioritize the training for the Treasurer and to that end, 

desires to amend funds from the FY 2022 General Fund budget allocation for General government 

Salaries and Wages to be offset by the Hotel Tax revenue line item shown in Exhibit A. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF 

CHESAPEAKE BEACH THAT: 

Section 1. The annual budget for the General Fund of Chesapeake Beach for the Fiscal 

Year 2022 is hereby amended to reflect the addition of Twenty-Five Thousand and 00/100 Dollars 

($25,000.00) to “General Fund Salaries and Wages and to be offset by the Hotel Tax revenue line 

item as shown on the attached Exhibit A. 

Section 2.  In all other respects the budget for the General Fund, as adopted on April 

15, 2021, shall remain as adopted and in full force and effect, subject to prior duly enacted 

amendments, with respect to revenues and expenditures for the Fiscal Year 2022. 

  



 

 - 3 - 

 

AS CERTIFIED by their signatures below, the members of the Town Council affirm this 

Ordinance was introduced at the Town Council meeting held on the 21st  day of April, 2022.   A 

public hearing was conducted on the 19th  day of May, 2022, and a vote was taken in accordance 

with Section C309 of the Town Charter. The vote of the Council was tallied and ____votes of 

approval and ____votes of disapproval were cast. The resulting 2/3 majority of the Council 

approved the passage of this Ordinance this ____ day of ____________, 2022, to become effective 

on the ____day of ______________, 2022. 

 

CHESAPEAKE BEACH, MARYLAND 

 

 

       ________________________________ 

       Patrick J. Mahoney, Mayor 

 

 

       ________________________________ 

       Valerie L. Beaudin, Councilwoman 

 

 

       ________________________________ 

       L. Charles Fink, Councilman 

 

 

       ________________________________ 

       Margaret P. Hartman, Councilwoman 

 

 

       ________________________________ 

       Gregory J. Morris, Councilman 

 

 

       ________________________________ 

       Lawrence P. Jaworski, Councilman 

 

 

________________________________ 

       Keith L. Pardieck, Councilman 

 

 



 As Introduced                         

Annual Budget FY 2022 
 Amendment 

 As Amended-

Annual Budget

FY 2022 

Income

Local Sources

100-410000 · Real Estate Taxes 2,719,849$                            2,719,849$    

100-410100 · Admission & Amusement Tax 1,314,340$                            1,314,340$     

100-410105 · State A&A Tax Distributions 300,000$                              300,000$      

100-410115 · Hotel Tax 80,000$                                25,000$          105,000$       

100-410120 · Operating Property Tax 61,536$                                 61,536$         

100-410125 · Penalties & Interest 3,000$                                  3,000$           

100-410135 · Traders License - County 860$                                      860$              

100-410140 · Zoning Permits & Site Plans 50,000$                                50,000$         

100-410145 · Interest on savings & investmen 15,000$                                 15,000$         

100-410160 · Bayfront Park Admissions -$                                          -$                   

100-410165 · Tower Site Rental 110,000$                               110,000$        

100-410170 · Cable Franchise Fee 110,000$                               110,000$        

100-410175 · Speed Camera & Other Fines 100,000$                               100,000$       

100-410175 · Ramp Fees 10,000$                                 10,000$         

100-410230 · Misc. Income 5,000$                                  5,000$           

Total Local Sources 4,879,585$                           25,000$          4,904,585$   

Federal, State,& County Sources

100-420100 · State income taxes 1,200,000$                            1,200,000$    

100-420105 · Highway User Revenues 338,013$                               338,013$       

100-420115 · State Aid Police Protection 56,608$                                56,608$         

Total Federal, State,& County Sources 1,594,621$                            1,594,621$     

Other Income

100-432200 Miscellaneous Grants 190,000$                               190,000$       

Total Other Income 190,000$                               190,000$       

Total Income 6,664,206$                           25,000$          6,689,206$   

General Fund

Fiscal Year 2022

Exhibit A

        Page 1 of 4



 As Introduced                         

Annual Budget FY 2022 
 Amendment 

 As Amended-

Annual Budget

FY 2022 

General Fund

Fiscal Year 2022

Exhibit A

Expense

GENERAL GOVERNMENT

Salaries, Wages, Payr Txs, Bene

100-6000-602000 · Salaries - Office 523,450$                              25,000$          548,450$      

100-6000-602050 · Fica Expense 43,875$                                43,875$         

100-6000-602100 · Medical and Life Insurance 150,998$                               150,998$       

100-6000-602300 · Retirement 94,485$                                94,485$         

100-6000-602400 · Continuing Education 20,000$                                20,000$         

Total Salaries, Wages, Payr Txs, Bene 832,808$                              25,000$          857,808$      

Contracted Services

100-6000-620400 · Audit 26,000$                                26,000$         

100-6000-620600 · Legal Counsel 80,000$                                80,000$         

100-6000-620800 · SDAT Fees 11,558$                                 11,558$          

100-6000-621100 · Annual Software Agr 45,000$                                45,000$         

100-6000-621200 · Planning & Zoning 90,000$                                90,000$         

100-6000-621400 · Engineering 100,000$                               100,000$       

100-6000-621600 · IT Support 30,000$                                30,000$         

100-6000-622500 · T.H. Building Maintenance 30,000$                                30,000$         

100-6000-623300 · Newsletter 10,000$                                 10,000$         

100-6000-623400 · Library RENT Grant 45,627$                                45,627$         

100-6000-623900 · Professional Fees 11,000$                                 11,000$          

100-6000-624500 · Web Maintenance 5,000$                                  5,000$           

100-6000-624700 · Document Imaging 4,000$                                  4,000$           

Total Contracted Services 488,185$                               488,185$       

Other Charges

100-6000-631210 · Legislative Education / Travel 20,000$                                20,000$         

100-6000-631220 · Dues & Subscriptions 18,000$                                 18,000$         

100-6000-631300 · Grants to Local Orgs 17,500$                                 17,500$         

100-6000-631305 · Senator M Miller Scholarship Fund 5,000$                                  5,000$           

100-6000-632000 · Misc. Expense 5,000$                                  5,000$           

100-6000-632300 · Office Expense 60,000$                                60,000$         

100-6000-634101 · Council Compensation 18,000$                                 18,000$         

100-6000-634102 · Mayor Compensation 18,000$                                 18,000$         

100-6000-634500 · Town Hall Telephone 15,150$                                 15,150$          

100-6000-635000 · Town Hall Utilities 22,000$                                22,000$         

100-6000-636101 · Special Events 128,100$                               128,100$        

100-6000-636201 · Economic Development 44,000$                                44,000$         

100-6000-637010 · Opioid Awareness Committee 3,000$                                  3,000$           

100-6000-637020 · Green Team 7,000$                                  7,000$           

100-6000-637030· Rental Inspection Services 20,000$                                20,000$         

100-6000-780000 · Insurance 75,000$                                75,000$         

100-6450-602050 · FICA 3,000$                                  3,000$           

100-6500-602010  · Recreation Operations 100,000$                               100,000$       

Total Other Charges 578,750$                              578,750$      

Total GENERAL GOVERNMENT 1,899,743$                            1,899,743$    

        Page 2 of 4



 As Introduced                         

Annual Budget FY 2022 
 Amendment 

 As Amended-

Annual Budget

FY 2022 

General Fund

Fiscal Year 2022

Exhibit A

PUBLIC SAFETY

100-6450-645500 · Police - Deputy in Residence 1,338,609$                            1,338,609$    

100-6450-646000 · Bayfront Park and Town Beautification 60,500$                                60,500$         

100-6450-646500 · North Beach VFD Cap Exp 50,000$                                50,000$         

Total PUBLIC SAFETY 1,449,109$                            1,449,109$     

PUBLIC WKS

Salaries and Benefits

100-6500-602000 · P.W. - Salaries 468,489$                              468,489$      

100-XXXX-XXXXX · Rec. Operations - Salaries 100,000$                               100,000$       

100-6500-602050 · P.W. - Fica Expense 41,102$                                 41,102$          

100-6500-602100 · P.W. - Medical & Life Ins. 147,950$                               147,950$       

100-6500-602300 · P.W. - Retirement Plan 74,000$                                74,000$         

100-6500-602400 · P.W. - Continuing Education 5,000$                                  5,000$           

Total Salaries and Benefits 836,541$                               836,541$       

Supplies (Public Works)

100-6500-665200 · Gasoline/Tolls 24,750$                                24,750$         

100-6500-665400 · Equipment Repair & Maint 30,000$                                30,000$         

100-6500-665600 · Supplies 15,000$                                 15,000$         

Total Supplies (Public Works) 69,750$                                69,750$         

Contracted Services

100-6500-672000 · Holiday Lights - Maint. 90,000$                                90,000$         

100-6500-673000 · Road Repairs & Maintenance 20,000$                                20,000$         

100-6500-674000 · Trash Removal Service 550,000$                              550,000$      

100-6500-675000 · Recycle Bins 10,000$                                 10,000$         

Total Contracted Services 670,000$                              670,000$      

Other Charges (P.W.)

100-6500-684300 · CBOCS Oyster Program 6,900$                                  6,900$           

100-6500-684900 · Miscellaneous 2,000$                                  2,000$           

100-6500-685200 · Property Maintenance 65,000$                                65,000$         

100-6500-685220 · Landscape Maintenance 140,000$                               140,000$       

100-6500-685240 · Tree Trimming and Removals 10,000$                                 10,000$         

100-6500-685500 · Recreation - Operations 175,000$                               175,000$       

100-XXXX-XXXXX · Storm Drain Inspection & Maint. 20,000$                                20,000$         

100-6500-686000 · Snow & Ice Removal 40,000$                                40,000$         

100-6500-686500 · Street Lights 63,000$                                63,000$         

100-6500-687000 · Telephone 9,000$                                  9,000$           

100-6500-687500 · Utilities 8,000$                                  8,000$           

Total Other Charges (P.W.) 538,900$                              538,900$      

Total PUBLIC WKS 2,115,191$                             2,115,191$      

        Page 3 of 4



 As Introduced                         

Annual Budget FY 2022 
 Amendment 

 As Amended-

Annual Budget

FY 2022 

General Fund

Fiscal Year 2022

Exhibit A

Total General Fund Capital Expenditure 1,175,013$                             1,175,013$     

DEBT SERVICE

100-8000-807000 · DNR #7 Seawall $25,150 (FY21) 25,150$                                    25,150$           

Total 8000 · DEBT SERVICE 25,150$                                    25,150$           

Total Expense 6,664,206$                               25,000$            6,689,206$      

FY Surplus

*** Local Taxes

Property tax shall be imposed and collected at the rate of $.3233 per $100 of property value.

        Page 4 of 4



 

[Type text] 
 

Chesapeake Beach Oyster Cultivation Society Report 

May, 2022 

          Chesapeake Beach Town Council Meeting 

 

 

 CBOCS finished its participation in the manufacture of reef balls at 4 

Northern Calvert County Elementary Schools. Volunteers, Sue Alexander, 

Linda Draper, and Megan Blake helped students and parents complete this 

project.  Ben Nolan from Chesapeake Beach Public Works Department made 

sure the equipment got deployed and collected. The completer reef balls are 

now being transported to the Chesapeake Village water tower for several 

months of curing. Then they will be deposited on the Old Rock Reef. 

  

Thanks to everyone who attended the April 29th unveiling of the plaque 

showing the 1941 Route 261 Bridge over Fishing Creek. This 24 x 18-inch 

plaque is mounted at the railing section next to Town Hall. Photographs of the 

plaque are available in Town Hall.  

 

Rain did not stop the May 6 CBOCS demonstration of our oyster 

program at the Oysterquarium to a film crew from Pennsylvania. They were 

filming an “Out in the Open” segment for local TV. This invitation was made 

to us by Hilary Dailey from the Calvert County Department of Economic 

Development.  

 

This will be my last Town Council Meeting Report. I am turning over 

the Chairmanship of CBOCS to Sue Alexander. Please give Sue the same 

support that I have received. For personal reasons it is now time for me to 

step aside. The CBOCS adventure during the last 11 years has been exciting, 

rewarding and sometimes frustrating. We have accomplished many projects. 

CBOCS participation in the Calvert County 5th grade Oyster education 

program has been a highlight. I would like to thank all the CBOCS 

volunteers, the Town of Chesapeake Beach, and the Chesapeake Beach Public 

Works Department, especially Jay Berry, for their great support. You are the 

best and I have greatly enjoyed working with you all.  

 
 

  

 



Green Team Meeting Minutes – April 28th 

Attendees:  

Sue Alexander 

Linda Draper 

Madeleine Blake 

Valerie Beaudin 

Joan Martin 

Michael Pardieck 

Sally Bissell 

Suzanne Blake 

Melanie Crowder 

Ken Rasmussen 

 

Meeting came to order at 6:30 
 
Next meeting scheduled for May 26, 2022 at 6:30 pm Pavilions weather permitting; If rain -Town Hall 

Conference room 

Upcoming Community & Team Events: 

- Bayfront Park Entrance for Native Planting Suggestions – May 5 - 4:15 

- Health & Wellness Fair – May 14 

- Green Team Meeting – May 26 

- Paddle & Pathway Pickup – October 1 

- Late winter / early spring educational talk with Erica Love, NECC 

Bayfront Park 

- Bayfront Park Entrance for Native Planting Suggestions – May 5th at 4:15   

- Holly has asked the Green Committee to design garden areas for the entrance to Bayfront Park. 

- Melanie, Valerie, Joanie, Sally and Linda volunteered to survey and plan the area 

- Michael made a recommendation to include fruit trees which was widely accepted. 

- Town DPW will prep grounds, landscapers will water and maintain. 

Spring Cleanup the Town:  April 30th 9:00-12:00 

- The Spring Cleanup the Town had approximately 10 volunteers.  The town provided hand sanitizer, 

water, gloves, litter grabbers, bags.   

- Areas cleaned – 2 kayakers worked the creek edges, sections of 261 (including near firehall); 

perimeter of Ball Field, Parking Lot, & Tot Lot; Marsh off Railway Trail. 

- Larry used an extension hook and an extension ladder to send volunteers into the marsh.  We, GT, 

may wish to look into other type of extensions beyond a hook which cannot pick up bottles. 

Signage & Informational Videos 

- Green Team members added signage for the 17th street garden.   



- Working with Holly, create a short video for the Town Website describing the use of natives in the 

17th street garden and discuss natives in general.  Maybe a series of videos, another would be 

Invasive Species and how to get GT help.  The GT set up a committee for this endeavor – Melanie, 

Sue, Sally Valerie, Holly; the hope is to set up a Face-to-Face meeting to discuss scope and process. 

 

Pollinator Gardens: 

- No current discussion 

Education and Outreach 

- Melanie is reaching out to several resources to invite a speaker for a discussion on invasive species 

for next inter 

- NECC would like to support more workshops of this caliber.  They need 6 months to advertise. 

- Health and Wellness Fair is May 14 10-2pm.   Keith Pardieck is sponsoring.  Linda, Sue and Kelly are 

organizing the table and raffle.  

- Holly has asked that the committee create a video for the town website – to highlight the 17th St 

gardens (ex what plants are there, why are natives important).  Valerie will set up meeting with 

Holly to discuss scope/purpose.   Melanie, Sue and Sally volunteered to assist this project. 

-  

Storm Runoff Mitigation 

- No current discussion 

 

Tree City USA 

- Melanie is researching other Tree City designated towns to schedule a meeting to  speak to us about 

best practices for applying for and on-going maintenance of Tree City designation – maybe a field 

trip to their town? 

- Tree City Town Committee – recommended that members be comprised of Holly Wahl, Jay Berry, 

Chris Jakubiak, and two citizens (Sue Alexander volunteered) 

- Continue to promote Tree City USA certification as part of the execution of the Comprehensive Plan. 

- Tree City Requirements:   Tree City USA at arborday.org   

- 3 of the 4 Requirements have been met 

o Community Tree Ordinance – has been issued 

o $2.00 per capita on urban forestry – has been designated in the town budget 

o Celebrate Arbor Day – performed a beach cleanup and dedicated Town Hall Garden to 

Nancy Fuerle. 

o Town tree committee still needs to be established. 

- Melanie, Ken and Sue will meet to discuss recommendations for the use of the $17k budget for tree 

maintenance. 

Other Issues 

- Valerie is working with town to get committee member t-shirts for use at events. 

https://www.arborday.org/programs/treeCityUSA/index.cfm


- Jan recommended town provide location for Community sponsored Agriculture (CSA) produce drop 

offs.  Green Committee supports promoting this effort and other CSA projects. 

- Michael Pardieck introduced the committee to a search engine called Ecosia.   This engine, used in 

lieu of Google, Firefox or other commercial engine, donates profits to planting trees around the 

world.   

- Valerie has submitted a budget request for eradication/replacement of Japanese Knotweed 

- Recommendation was made to ensure that the next Landscaping contract includes specifics on only 

using native perennials or minimum use of annuals.  Request that Holly includes members of our 

team in review/execution of next contract. 

Other Ongoing Ideas  

- Work with Kellam’s Field Committee to contribute more rain gardens. 

- Make eradication of Japanese Knotweed a priority  

- Install a storage box at pollinator garden for green team supplies and equipment behind spigot – 

hose, pails, shovels, bags, etc. 

- Continue clearing vines on Bayfront Park boardwalk and trail. 

- Suggestion made to have Liz Orlandi speak to the Comm about options for removal of English Ivy 

and Barberry invasives. 

- Develop Comprehensive Fishing Creek Trail Maintenance Plan to present to town. 

- Holly Wahl is researching cost of updating 2 signs on the boardwalk that misidentify bird/otter  

- Ivy Cleanup Door Hangers – need to identify point of contact for citizens requesting help;  mission 

will be to educate homeowners how and why to remove ivies from trees; possible have team go out 

and provide one-off lesson on “how to remove”.   Sue will continue to work on design of hanger.   

Public Works can place the hangers once properties are identified.  

- Submit recommendations for possible use of $2.9M Covid Relief Funds to be granted to the town: 

o Knotweed removal/restoration 

o B St slope restoration/reinforcement 

o Goats to clear ivies at Bayfront Park 

o Beach replenishment at Bayfront Park 

o Terracing/rebuild of new B St Park Replace town parking lots with pervious materials 

o Purchase lands for future parks. 

 

Completed Community & Team Events: 

- Spring Clean Up The Town – April 30 

- Dedication of Town Hall Buffer Garden in honor of Nancy Fuerle – April 29 

- Cleanup of Town Hall area prior to Nancy Fuerle dedication – April 28 - 4:30 

- Bee Talk – program was considered a success with 60 attendees and lots of engagement 

 



            
 

To: The Honorable Mayor and Town Council                           From Holly Wahl, Town Administrator 

Subject: Water Reclamation Treatment Plant Biosolid Sludge Removal RFP 

Date: May 12, 2022  

 

 

I. BACKGROUND: 

 

The Town of Chesapeake Beach released a formal RFP for sludge removal on April 12, 2022. The RFP was 

posted on eMaryland Marketplace Advantage and sent directly to thirty vendors through the EMMA 

procurement portal. The Town held a mandatory pre-bid meeting at the Water Reclamation Treatment Plant 

with one bidder present, Old Line Environmental - Synagro: 435 Williams Ct., Suite 100 Baltimore, MD 21230.   

 

II. RESULTS:  

 

Sealed proposals were received in Town Hall on May 6th at noon. See Exhibit “A,” summarized below.  

 

 
 



            
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

III.  RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended  that  Town Council consider awarding a contract to Old Line Environmental Synagro for  a (1)

one-year  term  with  the  option  to  renew  for  (2)  two  additional  (1)  one-year  terms  for  biosolid  removal  at  the

Chesapeake Beach Water Reclamation Treatment plant per the pricing provided to the Town by RFP on May 4th,

2022.

Biosolid removal is a vital service to maintain Plant operations. Services include removing, hauling, treating, 

and placing approximately 1,700 tons of bio-solid for re-use. This method provides environmental reuse and is 

significantly less per ton than hauling the material for disposal at a landfill.

The  contract  term  will  begin  in  August  2022.  Current  services  are  contracted  with  Old  Line  Environmental

Synagro as previously awarded by Town Council  until  August 2022.

Costs for the services are budgeted annually in the WRTP budget and shared with the WRTP partnering 

jurisdictions. Although the cost per ton came in approximately 4% higher than the cost used for budgeting in 
fiscal year 2023, plant staff believes they will not need a budget amendment and will work to keep costs to the 
FY23 budgeted amount.  



Exhibit "A"






















































	May 19, 2022 TC Agenda
	April 2022 TC minutes
	May 10, 2022 Special meeting minutes
	May 10, 2022 Work Session minutes
	Natl Water Safety Month Proclamation
	Stephen J Sharpe Bio
	Admin report
	Operations Manager Report -  May 2022
	PW report
	WRTP
	1. Closed Case Detail
	2 Closed Case Summary
	3 Open Case Detail
	4 Open Case Summary
	5 Rental Registration Status
	Engineers Report 5-10-22 letterhead
	Deputy's report
	CB calls for service
	NB call for service
	NBVFD
	Ordinances O-22-5 through O-22-11
	Ordinance O-22-5 Adopting_the_Water Park Fund_budget_for_FY_23
	FY 2023 - Water Park - Exhibit A
	Ordinance O-22-6 Adopting_the_Utility Fund_for_FY_23
	FY 2023 -Utility Fund - Exhibit A
	O-22-7 Amending_general_fund_budget_for_FY_21 FINAL
	FY 2021 - General fund Line overages - Exhibit A
	Sheet1

	Ordinance O-22-8 Amending_the_Water_Treatment_Plant_budget_for_FY_21 FINAL
	FY 2021 - Water Reclamation Treatment Plant Line overages - Exhibit A 
	Exhibit A

	Ordinance O-22-9-Amending_the_Utility_Fund_budget_for_FY_21 FINAL
	FY 2021 -Utility Fund Line overages - Exhibit A
	Sheet1

	Ordinance O-22-10 Amending_the_Water_Park_fund_for_FY_21 FINAL
	FY 2021 - Water Park Line overages- Exhibit A
	Sheet1

	REVISED Ordinance O-22-11 Amending_the_general_Fund_Budget_for_Fy_22 Salaries  Wages
	FY 2022 - General fund Salarlies & Wages- Exhibit A Amended
	Sheet1


	CBOCS
	Green Team Minutes 04_28__2022
	BIOSOLID_NewBusiness



